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Dear Shareholders,

2022 is an extraordinary year with uncertainties, challenges
and at the same time, opportunities. On the one hand,
being a responsible central state-owned enterprise, we
actively contribute in the prevention and control of the
epidemic. Our member hospitals have been fully committed
to intense medical treatments, and all our medical staff have
been doing their best, taking responsibilities, working under
great pressure and around the clock and overcoming
difficulties in different aspects. This fully demonstrates the
spirit of selfless dedication of our staff and also the
responsibility of a central
dominated red-gene. On the other hand, we have adjusted
our business model from the original “model focusing on
operation efficiency and great supply chain support” to
“sustainable development with 1+X model”. With our new
development model, we are ever improving the medical

state-owned enterprise with

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESREE

Chairman ZF &
Song Qing

HFURR :

2022F BN —F  HMEYHTAZ
WA EEMNEE - —HE - BPIEERAER
TEF - BIURERZ - SKEBRE NI
ABERNBERET  BERABBILEER
REBTHU - BREE BREE WER
RO RBETRARZEETENLERNE
BERBTABRACHNETEE - 5—F
H - BT EBRRN - R ARE
MtEEAZONERR | EBE LA RHERR
W1+XER | - BRBBERMEN - RIEE
ZEE RATZRRBEEZEE EES
HE TREER SXEBRBABINKE
BER BERY BEHEE E2ERES
BENER TEEBRE RBRAEFZEK
T oRGENNRETE ) BREEBEHE
% RFIER RMEEHREREER - £2

FHBRERARAT —T-__FEHRSE
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EERRE

technology of our institutes in order to serve more patients,
add value to the public health, and achieve high-quality and
sustainable development of the Group. By strengthening the
establishment of different disciplines,
experiences, medical quality, and operation management,

patient services

each member hospital has laid a solid business foundation,
improved its professional standards, ability in providing
different services, and brand influence, and also achieved a
reasonable balance of financial resources in the hospitals.
Our headquarters focuses on certain aspects including
supply chain and financial management, and take the
management
functions such as strategy, finance, human resources, and

advantages of professional in different
digitalization, further tap the potential of group management,
actively explore the business potential in the ecosystem,
improve the Group's profitability, and achieve high-quality
and sustainable development.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s medical business
remained stable. The annual outpatient visits of our member
hospitals increased by 2.1% year-on-year excluding the visits
of nucleic acid test, while the inpatient visits increased by
1.5% vyear-on-year. From the perspective of operation, the
annual medical business income of our member hospitals
totaled RMB8.336 billion, representing a slight increase of
0.8% vyear-on-year. In 2022, the Group's net profit
attributable to the owners of the parent was RMB139
million, representing a vyear-on-year decrease of 66.7%,
mainly due to the operating losses and impairments arising
from the Group's acquisition of 80% equity interests in
Huai‘an City Huaiyin Hospital Co., Ltd. in 2021, and also the
impact of recorded exchange loss caused by the relatively
large depreciation of domestic RMB during the Report
Period. By excluding the impact of non-recurring gains and
losses such as the mentioned exchange loss and
impairments, the adjusted net profit attributable to the
owners of the parent in 2022 recorded a slight increase as
compared with 2021.

AL RO REERLLEEES
BBCRS  BIFS AT BEULFEERRE
E-FIEREELERE N  BRERRERE
BEL RASERNKE BERSREH
HEER-

AEBNBEXBERESHRNRRIZBTE © 5
BRIZERAANR ETKEERE2FMZE
FIER21% : ERERLIZER1.5% 1)t
KEOERE - ETHNEBRE2FEBERER
WA 5 EIH83.36E T AR - A kg
0.8% ° 2022 ASBEEREHFHNHAR
¥1.39187C - AL T%66.7% - TZZHR
REER2021 FHRBEELTERERBRA
AIB0% RIEAMEAMKEEENME - UK
HRMEHAARBRSEERRNBERELK
BITE HIBRFTEL - B FIBRIRIE Hi8% - RAE
ZICEHBRNTE  RI2022F K AES
BEREE 2021 FEIH /P IRER
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On behalf of the Board, | would like to sincerely thank all
Shareholders for their great support, thank our friends for
their care and assistance, and thank our staff for their
perseverance in work and high morale.

Year 2023 is the first year for us to thoroughly implement
the spirit of the 20th National Congress, and also the key
year to implement the Company’s 14th Five-Year Strategy.
We will seize the opportunities arising from certain
supporting policies for SOE medical institutes to coordinate
aspects so as to actively promote
high-quality development of our institutes. We also aim to
complete the acquisition of Liaojian and Jiangneng projects,
and continue to pay special
acquisition opportunities of quality state-owned hospitals,
and make good use of our experience in the reform of

resources in all

attention to merger and

public hospitals and state-owned hospitals to further expand
our scale of business and establish an excellent and
efficient regional medical system. At the same time, we
shall continue to focus on improving the diagnosis and
treatment technical capabilities, operational efficiency and
service standards of existing member hospitals, and strive to
provide more professional and efficient medical and
healthcare services to the public at reasonable costs. We
shall implement various tasks based on our professionalism
and rich experiences and track record in the medical service
leading medical

healthcare group in China and a pioneer in the reform of

industry, and aim to become a and

state-owned medical institutes.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
Song Qing
Chairman

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEREE

Fl - RERZEEE  ROBHZBEBRE
S A RS R T RO RIE
B ARESEAINETES  SHFAZM
BYHER -

2023 F ZR2HEEBRUEE_TRBENARZ
F o oHEREEQRTHAKBKNBER T
BMEMEECHESEEERAREEN
BE#E  BATSH TEER 2 OXHFK
EERRMEEE - SR HB TR EERN
IeeBEMWEE  WIFER T EEE
ERMNEAHE  RTOBRBRARSHEQVE
PTAMBE B EMEE  EARREER
B BREEEsdmEE — B tiprrEEg
Ro-RARENRSEANXEERMNZERN
BEh - BEMERFBEKE  EHELEKR
PIREFHE  FRRNELENBERR
R MWBEANES® BUMNEEZHS
BIE BOKABEANELNERRRESE
SEMBECEEREBERENEESE -

EHBRERERAF

EHBRERARAT T _FEHRS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEBNWEDN

The Group achieved a consolidated revenue of RMBb5,620
million for the vyear ended December 31, 2022 (2021:
RMB4,447 million); the increase in revenue was mainly
attributable to the improved operating efficiency as well as
the effects in
hospitals.

relation to the consolidation of certain

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a net profit
of RMB159 million (2021: RMB426 million) and earnings per
share of RMBO0.11 (2021: RMBO0.33 per share). Net profit
decreased 62.6% year-on-year,
attributable to the operating losses and impairments incurred
in relation to the equity interests of the Huaiyin Hospital,
which was acquired by the Group in 2021, as well as
exchange losses due to the relatively significant depreciation
of the RMB during the Reporting Period.

which was mainly

In 2022, the material impairments to the accounting items
of the Group include impairment of approximately RMB108
million in respect of the goodwill of the Huaiyin Hospital
project. The provision for Huaiyin Hospital's government
purchase service fee receivables is approximately RMB45
million, which were non-cash and non-recurring in nature. In
addition, because of the impacts of the relatively significant
depreciation of RMB during the Reporting Period on the
outstanding offshore loans of approximately HKD2.2 billion
held by the Group, the Group recorded an exchange loss of
RMB159 million, which was non-cash in nature.

As of December 31, 2022, the Group manages and
operates 116 medical institutions in 8 provinces and cities in
China, and the number of annual outpatient visits of the
Group’s member hospitals was approximately 15,270,000,
representing an increase of 41.6% compared with 2021. The
annual
286,000, representing an increase of 1.5% compared with
2021.

number of inpatient visits was approximately

AEBEREZE2022F12A3B LN FE &
EHGEEEBARKS6.208 T (20214F
B AR®44.471870)  EXEEMHEBILE
—FEEAAKEMGZNRE  S—HENA
TEREREBRMOHFRTHEMEE

mikEHAAEBE G FFNBEAEARKE59
BT (2021FE : ARK42608TT) RERA
FMARB011T(2021FE  8RARE
0.337T) ° FFHEL ~462.6% + EEHMN
RNEER 2021 FWREE LR B TELNES
BEERE  UERERREHARNARBRAKR
BEREFKAERIBRTER -

2022F AAREBEESRANRESTER R
mERERBEREREREARE1.08ET
HEEBREREBAEE RSB IRERER
AR®0.45187T - HERE/IFRE MIFE
FHE o WS BAKERBNEE22(8T
SNEE AR AR 1 BB TTEVEE AR K
W RIEREME -

B 220229128318 A& E £ K ESH
A O MHEBTEEENRERHME A58
REBRFEMZEABNIE2IBEAR &
2021F 1 )141.6% : E T & B #128.68 A
R BX2021F G AN1.5% ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Consolidating the Wugang Hospital Group

Since the corresponding documents in relation to the daily
operation arrangement of CR Wugang JV have been
executed between it and the Company, the Group has
obtained the practical capability to direct the relevant
activities of the CR Wugang JV unilaterally and gained
control over the CR Wugang JV, and its financial statements
have been retrospectively consolidated into the Group's
financial statements since January 30, 2022. In addition,
since the corresponding documents in relation to the daily
operation arrangement of the Wugang Hospital Group have
been executed between it and the CR Wugang JV, together
with the effect of the previous constitution amendments on
the above hospitals, the Group has obtained the practical
capability to direct the relevant activities of such hospitals
unilaterally and gained control over them, and therefore the
financial statements of the Wugang Hospital Group have
been retrospectively consolidated into the Group's financial
statements since January 30, 2022.

List of Medical Institutions under the
Group’s Management and Operation

EEENWETN

HERREEREE

BAQARREHREGE ARFLHEER
Rl6E A AFIAECERHEEENEEX
f AEBAEBYESERRMHEGE QA
WA EB M ERRAE - WS T EERHE
BENTIMEGIE  REEMBEHRTENS
20221 A30H & = A & B /Y B 1% &
To i REHREAE QA ERMER
SEFRMNEREEREEERHFTANME
B MERATEREITH L EBREE
VRE AEECAGEBUIEE FNBRAY
REEEMERAE N - WS THBERY
=l - At R B B M SRR INE
WE2022F1 A30HBE HERNEEME
W -

FEEEREEBREBO MR

Grade 1

Hospitals Clinics &

and Other

Community Medical

Grade 3 Grade 2 Centres Institutions

Hospitals Hospitals —HEBRE &k ZAAKEMW

Province/City & D/ =BT BT A& AL RS
Beijing = 3 4 10 29 46
Shandong IS = 2 2 9 13
Shanxi [Ai]pis} = 1 = — 1
Jiangsu T &R = 2 — — 2
Anhui T 1 1 19 5 26
Hubei bl 2 = 3 16 21
Guangdong E® 1 1 — 2 4
Guangxi Ef = 2 1 — 3
Total aat 7 13 35 61 116

EHEEZERERAT —T-_FE®RE 1
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

Operating data for Year 2022

Number of patients

2022 F & EEH B

Revenue from medical business (FMB000)
BEEERWAAREFT)

Revenue Revenue Revenue

Number of  Utilization from from from

beds in rate of Number of Number of  outpatient inpatient physical

operation beds outpatients  inpatients visits visits examination

BERNE KUEAZE  FZAR  ERAR FRBA  BREA

Self-owned BEEER
Hospitals™e! 9,589 76% 10,226,580 251,311 3,123,049 3,524,379 113,307 6,760,735
IOT/OT Hospitals |0T/OTEfR 1,526 54% 5,040,077 34,841 1,035,704 497,370 42,649 1,575,723
Subtotal gt 11,115 73% 15,266,657 286,152 4,158,753 4,021,749 155,956 8,336,458
Operating data for Year 2021 2021 FEEHE

Number of patients

Revenue from medical business (RVB000)

EREBUAUEETT)

Revenue Revenue Revenue

Number of from from from

beds in  Utilization Number of Number of  outpatient inpatient physical

operation rate of beds outpatients  inpatients visits visits examination

g RUFERE FZAR ERAR  FZ2KA  GREA  BREA

Self-owned BEERE

Hospitals™e! 10,469 73% 7,562,810 242,321 2,954,506 3,620,303 128,421 6,703,230
|OT/OT Hospitals I0T/OTE 1,773 55% 3,217,655 39,632 980,626 531,163 57,260 1,569,049
Subtotal et 12,242 70% 10,780,465 281,953 3,935,132 4,151,466 185,681 8,272,279
Note: In respect of the operating data statistics, the abovementioned self-owned i@ FBEEZESHTEN LB B ERAEAER

hospitals refer to all consolidated hospitals and unconsolidated hospitals of
the Group, and except for the IOT/OT hospitals managed by the Group.

MEHRERRIEFHRER  TEEmAEEERE
#I0T/OTEx »

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2022



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWETN

Financial data

% EE
2022 F B Bl 15

Financial data for Year 2022

Segment results
DERE
Self-owned IOT/OT  Other derived  Administrative Other gains
2022 hospitals hospitals businesses expenses and expenses
H i e zm Ko
RMB'000 BARK IOT/OT®FE  HffTERH -9i
Revenue from goods and 7 b & AR 75 W 2
services 5,620,461 5,178,404 430,637 11,420 - -
Cost of sales and services & RBHAA (4,649,321) (4,331,592) (301,954) (15,775) - -
Other income H b A 82,440 68,091 7,555 6,794 - -
Other gains and losses H o e zs R B8 (113) (113) = = - -
Selling and distribution HERAHER
expenses (19,437) (14,274) (4,684) (479) - -
Administrative expenses THER (540,784) (508,703) (20,811) (11,270) — —
Finance costs % ER (3,949) (3,936) - (13)
Impairment losses on CREERAERNLX
financial assets, net FE (31,976) (31,592) - (384) - —
Other expenses Hith &R (6,942) (6,924) = (18) - -
Share of profit of joint [ElhEE/BEDna
ventures/associates b 88,068 88,068 = =
Segment results 2EER 538,447 437,429 110,743 (9,725)  N/ARER N/ATER
Headquarters operating BPEEER
expenses (88,061) - - - (88,061) -
Other profit or loss HihiBam (163,159) = = = = (163,159)
Finance costs % ER (44,814) = = = - (44,814)
Income tax Fr i (83,071) = = = = (83,071)
Net profit or loss FR% 159,342 437,429 110,743 (9,725) (88,061) (291,044)
Notes: it
During the Reporting Period: RREBN :

BERREIE @28k Emi BBk (REERD
)R8k EEBREE  HERBER - BER=N
FERIEEPT - HRIEEE T ROEILTAES (O IR) FAEH L
9 B8 BT 5= [E (202241 A31HE) LA R AR BT -
D F e EEAEERE 7 E B A HERT
£ 8 (202241 A308 1b) FrESRUES -

(1) Self-owned hospitals include: Jian Gong Hospital, Jinan Bei Cheng Hospital (1)
(previously known as Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital), Huaikuang Hospital Group,
the Run Neng Hospitals, Guangdong 999 Brain Hospital, Xukuang Hospital
and Huaibei City Mental Health Center, Wugang Hospital Group (since
January 31, 2022) and also Huaiyin Hospital. This segment also includes
the return on the Group's investments to Jing Mei Hospital and the
Wugang Hospital Group (up to January 30, 2022).

IOTEBE B4 - PISRER &R - PFIBBEP &R - FI
BEEERHRER  IBEREEEERERIEREE =

B -

(2) IOT hospitals include: Mentougou Hospital, Mentougou Traditional Chinese (2)
Medicine Hospital, Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children, Shunyi
District Konggang Hospital and the Second Hospital of Shunyi District.

(3) OT hospitals include: Yantai Zhifu Hospital and Yuenianhua Rehabilitation — (3) OTERBIE  BasRBRRINFERBER -

Hospital.

EHEEZERERAT —T-_FE®RE 13
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED N

2021 F B F & 1%

Segment results

2 PEH

Financial data for Year 2021

Self-owned IOT/OT  Other derived  Administrative Other gains

2021 hospitals hospitals businesses expenses and expenses
RMB'000 BAER IOT/OT&k  EMATH %K THE M
Revenue from goods and 78 o R AR A U

services 4,447,477 3,968,459 453,843 25,175 = =
Cost of sales and services  $5& MIRFEHKA (3,513,922) (3,169,038) (315,087) (29,797) - -
Other income HAh KA 46,322 32,395 7,915 6,012 - -
Selling and distribution HERDHER

expenses (16,396) (11,791) (4,533) (72) = -
Administrative expenses THER (332,426) (308,498) (18,602) (5,326) - -
Finance costs MBER (2,516) (2,450) - (66)
Impairment losses on CREENEBEFE

financial assets,net (77,539) (77,539) = = = =
Other expenses Hit &R (2,951) (2,488) = (463) - =
Share of profit of joint EEE%/BE AR

ventures/associates Pl 83,553 83,553 =
Segment results PBEE 631,602 512,603 123,536 (4,537) N/ATIE A N/ATE A
Headquarters operating BHELER

expenses (139,407) = = = (139,407) =
Other profit or loss HinEam (206,403) - - - - (206,403)
Finance costs MHKER (15,318) - - - - (15,318)
Share of profit of joint =Yt NG

ventures/associates b 1 - - - - 1
Income tax FriS 155,389 = = = - 155,389
Net profit or loss TR 425,864 512,603 123,536 (4,537) (139,407) (66,331)

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2022



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In 2022, the aggregated results of all segments amounted
to about RMB538 million,
approximately 14.8% as compared with the previous year
loss and the
incurred by Huaiyin

which decreased by

and was mainly due to the operating
impairment of accounts receivable
Hospital.

Since January 30, 2022, the financial statements of the
Wugang Hospital Group have been consolidated into the
Group's financial statements. Please find more details in the
“Business Review — Consolidating the

Wugang Hospital Group” of this report.

section headed

During the Reporting Period, the medical business revenue
of the self-owned hospital segment increased by 0.9%
year-on-year to approximately RMB6.76 billion, and the
segment recorded an decrease of 14.7% to
approximately RMB437 million. The revenue growth of the
self-owned hospital segment was mainly due to the
improvement in operating efficiency of our
hospitals. The segment results of the self-owned hospitals
(excluding Huaiyin Hospital) decreased by 0.5%, mainly due
to the
regions.

results

existing

impact of healthcare policy changes in certain

EEENWED AN

zozziki%hﬁﬂﬂ B ARS.38
TR EFRIETREL148% 0 EBXHE
ﬁﬁ%ié’]%&%@ﬂaﬂrﬁu&ﬁﬁ KRB 5

ﬂlh‘ﬁ%ﬁ‘

B2022F1 3308 % RilEREE 2 87
WMERFARNEBNITEHREA - F1FRATR
L¥EKOE — HERRMEREE XD

WEBRN BEBRYEME F%WM\H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

Self-owned hospitals

2022
20224
RMB'000

EESE 1% ARET T

2021
20214
RMB’000
ARETIT

Year-on-Year Change

A H
RMB’000
ARETT

Percentage

Bt

Revenue from medical BEEBERA

business 6,760,735 6,703,230 57,505 0.9%
General healthcare services #34 BERS

performance 287,318 137,941 149,377 108.3%
Hospital management BEREERBEE

services fees 46,857 53,269 (6,412) -12.0%
Third-party supply chain F=HitEE

service fees R & 35,524 181,082 (145,558) -80.4%
GPO gross profit GPOEF| 144,386 167,628 (23,242) -13.9%
Profit contribution FMBEMES 514,085 539,920 (25,835) -4.8%
Profit contribution rate FHEERE 7.6% 8.1% -0.5ppt
Operating expenses and EZEBRRK

other profit or loss HMEm (76,656) (27,317) (49,339) 180.6%
Segment results DERELE 437,429 512,603 (75,174) -14.7%
Segment results rate 2R EE 6.5% 7.6% -1.2ppt

Note:

During the Reporting Period, the additional depreciation amounts due to the i

appreciation of assets of the self-owned hospitals in the consolidation

process were approximately RMB39 million, which have been reclassified
to operating expenses and other profit or loss.

BERN BABRAEAHEEEROTHEER
ESHOARKI00BLENDREELEARE

fEz=p -
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Segment Results — IOT/OT Hospitals

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWED N

DEFEE — IOT/OTERR

During the Reporting Period, the revenue from medical
business of the I0OT/OT hospital segment increased by 0.4%
when compared with the prior year, while this segment
recorded a year-on-year decrease of 10.4% in its results.

HERA - 10T/OT BB 7 B0 #Y B B A5 UL
ABR—F AL ER0.4% - MHEBEEANF
T F#10.4% ©

IOT/OT hospitals

IOT/OT & fx

2022
20225
RMB’000
ARETTT

2021
20214
RMB’000
ARETTT

Year-on-Year Change
Gl Xid
RMB'000  Percentage
AR®FT Bt

Revenue from medical BEREEBKBA

business 1,575,723 1,569,049 6,674 0.4%
Hospital management BREEREE

services fees 25,939 33,500 (7,561) -22.6%
Third-party supply chain F=HftEsE

service fees R B 40,007 54,356 (14,349) -26.4%
GPO gross profit GPOEF 76,984 70,344 6,640 9.4%
Profit contribution FMBERS 142,930 158,200 (15,270) -9.7%
Profit contribution rate FHERE 9.1% 10.1% -1ppt
Operating expenses and other B& & A K H M

profit or loss B (32,187) (34,664) 2,477 -7.1%
Segment results D IEE 110,743 123,536 (12,793) -10.4%
Segment profit margin 2R EE 7.0% 7.9% -0.8ppt

Headquarters operating expenses MEMEEER

The total operating expenses of the headquarters amounted
to approximately RMB88 million in 2022 (FY2021: RMB139
million), accounting for 14.0% of the total administrative
expenses of the Group (FY2021: 29.6%), the decrease was
mainly due to a sharp drop in staff costs after the reshaping
of the organisation.

Other profit or loss

During the Reporting Period, other loss of the Group totalled
approximately RMB163 million (FY2021: other loss of
RMB206 million). Other profit or loss includes the Group's
interest income, income from wealth management products
held, foreign exchange gains or losses and impairments
made pursuant to the relevant accounting standards by the
Group. Among which the recorded exchange loss due to
changes in exchange rate during the Reporting Period was
approximately RMB159 million.

2022%F - AEEE B A A K ARKS,800
BT (2021 FE - AR1.39187T) - 1h
AEEZHITHRERBER14.0% (20218
BEE 29.6%)  KAMBBEBRATIKAR
RIE T FEFTEL -

HftiE

HMERAN AEBEZHMEBEETHNARE
1.63187C Q0N HEFE : HtEEARKE
20687L) - EfbiBm B S ANEEHNF B UK
A TR BIEMEREENRATERE
@ WERAEBRIRERA S ELELRE
ZH o BERMEHRANREXTEHELNER
BERHABARE1BIET -

EHEEZERERAT —T-_FE®RE

17



18

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmED N

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, Huaiyin
Hospital has
government of approximately RMB45 million in respect of
the medical services provided to the local government.
Huaiyin Hospital has provided the relevant services to the
local government since 2015, where such services and the
corresponding service fee amounts have to be audited and
confirmed by the local government's independent auditor

impaired receivables due from the local

before such amounts could be settled. The local
government has paid portions of the reviewed and
confirmed service fees. At the completion of the acquisition
of Huaiyin Hospital, the Company considered that the
concerned receivables from the local government on the
books of the acquisition target were recoverable. However,
in the past two years, the government audit works have
been delayed and the Company needs to communicate with
the local government continuously to obtain feedback on the
audit results, resulting in delays
receivables. The Company has been reviewing the status of
recovery of such receivables and actively communicating
with the relevant local government departments in respect
of the same. Nevertheless, in 2022, the abovementioned
government audit works have been further delayed, and,
therefore, the Company has to make another provision for
such receivables at the end of FY2022. The Company has
conducted legal and financial due diligence regarding the
abovementioned acquisition of Huaiyin Hospital in
accordance with its applicable internal procedures, and the
Company was not aware of and did not anticipate any of
the aforesaid factors that led to the impairment of such
receivables for FY2022 prior to the completion of the
acquisition. The Company will continue to communicate with
the relevant local government authorities in order to speed
up the settlement of the receivables.

in settlement of the

HE2022F12A3B It 2 BEE - EE
B8 Bz [A) & b BR AT HR 4 B8 AR AR 7S A0 PR U SR TE AT
REBREBHAREEA 5008 7T - HERER S
2015 F A E BT ABRY - ZER
ISHMABRER R & S 5N ALE il T
BHE L EFTRN ER BT R ERE R TIA
T BEMBREXNHOELZELEL
RS E - WHEERERRIER XHF - AAF
REVBZNER LHE BTN RKR A
A LANS Bl ) RIE o ST R ST R B A
TEBAMERAARNG R ERERITHE
BIBLVERENARORE - BHEWFIE
REE - ARF—HBETZE R MK
BlE S I B2 b BT AR B 2B PIAE 1R B 38 o
AT - AR2022F AT Bt TIEBE B ERR -
AR A R 2022 F B B S R 5% 5 IR
HEETTRE ERRBEEXREN &K
NEIBREE AR IR P ot Lt g e
BERET TARNME AT ENERASET - K
AN E) I FE IR B FE T B E 0] Bl BB
ZRWERFNNR2022F B FEREMHESE -
RRFHGIHES HERE AT HE B PIFE S
B INIRAZ FE M ERIE RO B O AR o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2022, the Company
impairment of

For the fiscal year ended December 31,

recorded a provision for goodwill
approximately RMB108 million related to the acquisition of
Huaiyin Hospital. The provision for goodwill impairment is
due to the gradual loss of medical staff at Huaiyin Hospital
in 2022, which had a material impact on its
In 2022, Huaiyin Hospital’'s medical business

and its

adverse
operations.
revenue dropped by more than 50% vyear-on-year,
operating loss is approximately RMB76 million. It will take a
relatively long-term and require continuous process to
recover the number of patient visits, and the mentioned
impacts to the hospital are expected to continue in the
coming few years. Such situation results the present value
of cash flow becomes lower than the book value of the
corresponding assets and therefore the impairment of
goodwill exists. Since the calculation of the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit corresponding to the
goodwill requires appropriate assumptions and professional
judgment, the Company has engaged an independent valuer
to conduct a goodwill impairment test in this regard. The
Company's auditors have to review the assessment results
in accordance with the requirements of the audit
procedures, too. Prior to and at the completion of the
the Company did not foresee such gradual
nor did it
anticipate any of the aforesaid factors that led to the
impairment of goodwill for FY2022. In response to the
staff attrition faced by Huaiyin Hospital, the
Company has already
program, and ever optimizing its business strategy so as to

replenish high-quality talents and improve the operation.

acquisition,
attrition of medical staff at Huaiyin Hospital,

medical
implemented a talent attraction

Details can be referred to the announcement of the
Company dated February 20, 2023.

During the Reporting Period, the unallocated finance costs of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB44.80 million
(FY2021: RMB15.32 million).
costs was in line with the increase in foreign currency loan
interest rates due to an increase in the U.S. dollar interest
rate.

The increase in the finance
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFWED N

During the Reporting Period, the Group’'s income tax
expenses amounted to RMB83 million (FY2021
credit figure of RMB155 million).

recorded

The Group recorded a net profit of RMB159 million, during
the Reporting Period representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 62.6%.

The amendments to the respective constitutional documents
of the member medical institutions, which are sponsored by
have been completed pursuant to the
requirements under the ‘Guiding Opinions on the Pilot
Scheme for the Formulation of Hospital Constitutions’ jointly
issued by the National Health Commission and the National
Administration of Traditional Chinese Medicine in May 2018,
the model template of public hospital constitution issued by

our subsidiaries,

the National Health Commission in December 2019 and the
guidelines given by the local
authorities. As such, the Group has therefore obtained the
practical capability to direct the relevant activities of such
medical institutes unilaterally and gained control over them,
and their financial statements have therefore gradually been
consolidated into the Group's financial statements in 2020
and 2021. Due to the above consolidation, the Group no
longer records any sponsorship rights and service contracts
related to such sponsored hospitals in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022.

respective government

Management of the Company performed impairment
reviews of goodwill annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicated a potential impairment.
The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill relates were determined based on the
value
estimates and professional judgements, and management of
the Company in these
calculations. Details of the impairment losses of goodwill

in use. These calculations required the use of

involved an external valuer

are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements and the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Other Profit or Loss —

Impairments” to this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and
Disposals, Investments in and
Receivables from Joint Venture(s) and
Subsequent Plans for Material Capital
Investments

The Board considers any single investment with fair value
accounting for more than 5% of the total assets of the
Group as significant investment. As the Group did not have
any single investment accounting for 5% or more of the
total assets of the Group as at December 31, 2022, the
Group did not have any significant investments.

Investment in UMP Healthcare Holdings

UMP Healthcare Holdings, listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange (Stock code: 722.HK), is mainly engaged in
providing healthcare solutions and service in Hong Kong.
Details of investment in UMP Healthcare Holdings have
been disclosed in the Company's annual reports in prior
years. Pursuant to the relevant accounting standards, the
Company has categorized the investment in UMP Healthcare
Holdings as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. As at December 31,
investment in UMP Healthcare Holdings was approximately
RMB65.60 million.

2022, the fair value of our

Future Plans for Material Investment or
Capital Assets

On February 22, 2023, CR Hospital Investment (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company)
conditionally agreed to purchase from LR Management (as
transferor) 76.10% equity interests in Liaoning CR
Healthcare and 100% equity interests in Shenzhen CR
Healthcare at a consideration of RMB3,394,607,000, which
will be settled in cash.

(as transferee) has
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmED N

On even date, CR Hospital Investment (as transferee) has
conditionally agreed to purchase from CR Technology (as
transferor) 80% equity interests in CR Healthcare (Jiangxi)
Co., Ltd. (B2 OIFA) AR A F]) and the debts owed by
the CR Healthcare (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd. to China Resources
Healthcare Technology Development (China) Co., Ltd. (the
principal balance amounted to RMB316,944,600 as at
December 31, 2022) at a consideration of RMB244,536,000,
which will be settled in cash.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Subsequent Event” of this report

for the details.

The Directors confirmed that, save as disclosed above as at
the date of this report, there are currently no other concrete
plans to acquire any material investment or capital assets
other than those conducted in the Group's ordinary course
of business.

Our country’s medical service industry has a large market
volume, and patients’ demand for differentiated and multi-
level medical services are gradually being released. Medical
institutions operated by state-owned enterprises (“SOE
Medical Groups"”) are therefore forming an important part of
China’s medical and health service system. SOE Medical
Groups have become a new and important force in the
industry. They play an important role in meeting the growing
multi-level and diversified medical and health service needs
of the people, responding to major epidemics and sudden
public health risks, etc. At the end of 2022, 13 ministries
and commissions including the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission jointly issued
the “Plan for supporting the high-quality development of
state-owned enterprises in operating medical institutions”,
showing that state-owned hospitals will enter the new stage
of high-quality development in full speed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is actively promoting its 14th Five-Year Plan and
is committed to becoming a top-tier medical and healthcare
services provider in China and a leader in the medical
reform of the SOE Medical Groups. We have adjusted our
medical operation model and create the “1+X"” model with
discipline construction as the core strategy in achieving
high-quality and sustainable development. In terms of
extension growth, we shall
resources within the China Resources Group as and when

appropriate, continue to focus on core areas, and incubate

inject high-quality medical

and cultivate high-quality merger pipelines, in order to
achieve our business growth targets. In terms of organic
growth, we will continue to speed up regional integration,
develop
development of advantageous disciplines, and play a leading

role in the development in medical services in different

regional leading medical institutes through the

regions. At the same time, we shall explore the uniqueness
of our different disciplines in the specific regions, build
leading disciplines, form a discipline layout in line with its
own characteristics,
development direction of the hospital branches, and build
and integrate them into sub-groups in
different regions. In terms of our profitability, on one hand,
our medical institutes shall lay an even more solid business
foundation, improve medical technology further, serve more

further clarify the positioning and

leading hospital

patients, and add more value to the public healthcare sector
by strengthening capacity and certain disciplines, improving
our medical service quality and operation efficiency, to
achieve reasonable profitability; on the other hand, we will
continue to focus on our capability of the supply chain
function, capital
release the energy of our professional

management and other areas, further
management in
medical institutes, and continue to focus on core functions
including strategy,
information technology so as to tap the potential of group
management,

profitability and at the same time achieving our goal of

finance, human resources, and

group synergy and further improve our

sustainable and high-quality development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmED N

We adopt a prudent treasury management policy to maintain
a solid and healthy financial position. The Group funds its
operations principally from cash generated from its
operations and also bank facilities. Its cash needs relate
primarily to operating activities, business expansion,
repayment of liabilities as they become due, capital
expenditures, interest and dividend payments.

As at December 31, 2022, the Group's consolidated bank
balances and cash, certificate of deposit and bank financial
products amounted to approximately RMB3.83 billion in total
(December 31, 2021: approximately RMB3.23 billion) which
were primarily in RMB.

As at December 31, 2022, the Group has obtained offshore
revolving term loan facility of HK$5.2 billion (or its
equivalent in U.S. dollar or Renminbi). Among which, HK$1.1
billion of the facility is a five-year committed loan, HK$3.0
billion of the facilities is with no fixed term until further
notice by the corresponding bank, whilst the remaining
HK$1.1 billion is of the term of one year which shall be
automatically renewed if the relevant bank does not notify
otherwise. As at December 31, 2022, the Group had
interest-bearing bank borrowings of HK$2.235 billion and
RMB25 million (equivalent to approximately RMB2.02 billion
in total) (December 31, 2021: HK$933 million and US139
million (equivalent to approximately RMB1.65 billion in
total)), and unutilized bank facilities of HK$2.965 billion
(equivalent to approximately RMB2.649 billion). As at
December 31, 2022, the Group's offshore bank borrowings
carried interests at floating rates, among which, HK$1.1
billion would be due on June 25, 2027, and others would be
due within one year. HK$0.7 billion of the facilities is the
sustainability-linked and social responsibility loan.

As at December 31, 2022, on the basis of interest-bearing
liabilities (excluding payables to hospitals sponsored by the
Group) divided by total assets, the Group’s gearing ratio
was 18.2% (December 31, 2021: 15.9%). In addition, the
carrying value of each of our wealth management products
as at December 31, 2022 did not exceed 5% of the Group's
total asset value.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group undertakes certain operating transactions in
foreign currencies, which exposes the Group to foreign
currency risk, mainly pertaining to the risk of fluctuations in
the Hong Kong dollar and U.S. dollar against RMB.

The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge
against its exposure to currency risk. The management
risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates and considers
hedging against significant foreign exchange exposure
should such need arise.

manages the currency

The Group is also exposed to risk of talent shortage, so we
have been taking an active approach to attract, train and
retain sufficient qualified doctors, management personnel
and other medical staff members, otherwise the business of
hospitals affiliated to the Group would be affected to some
degree. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Employees and Remuneration
Policy” of this report for those measures mentioned above.

The Group also recognise that our relationship with patients
and partners is key to the resilient development of the
Group. We strive to provide qualified services and medical
staffs with extensive experiences to our patients. By
leveraging on sophisticated medical skills and equipment,
we try our best to cater to our patients’ needs for medical
treatments. We also cooperate with our partners to achieve
the sustainable development of our business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmED N

As at December 31, 2022, the Group did not have any
contingent liabilities or guarantees that would have a
material impact on the financial position or operations of the
Group.

As of December 31, 2022, the Group did not have any
material pledge of assets.

After the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company has
entered into the following transactions:-

° On February 22, 2023, CR Hospital Investment (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (as
transferee) entered into the Equity Transfer Agreement
| with LR Management (as transferor), pursuant to
which LR Management has conditionally agreed to sell
and CR Hospital Investment has conditionally agreed to
purchase 76.10% equity interests in Liaoning CR
Healthcare and 100% equity interests in Shenzhen CR
Healthcare at a consideration of RMB3,394,607,000,
which will be settled in cash. As at the date of this
report, Liaoning CR Healthcare holds one wholly-owned
subsidiary and indirectly holds the sponsorship rights of
31 LH Member Institutions, whereas Shenzhen CR
Healthcare has no subsidiaries.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o On February 22, 2023, CR Hospital Investment (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (as
transferee) entered into the Equity and Debt Transfer
Agreement Il with CR Technology (as transferor),
pursuant to which CR Technology has conditionally
agreed to sell and CR Hospital Investment has
conditionally agreed to purchase 80% equity interests
in the JE Subject and the debts owed by the JE
Subject to CR Technology (the principal balance
amounted to RMB316,944,600 as at December 31,
2022) at a consideration of RMB244,536,000, which
will be settled in cash. As at the date of this report,
the JE Subject directly holds the sponsorship rights of
six JE Member Medical Institutions.

After the Completion Date, Liaoning CR Healthcare will
become a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Shenzhen CR Healthcare will become a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The financial
results of Liaoning CR Healthcare Group and Shenzhen
CR Healthcare will be consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. The JE
Subject will become a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, and the financial results of JE Subject
Group will be consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

Details can be referred to the announcement of the
Company dated February 22, 2023. As of the date of this
report, the acquisitions are subject to independent
Shareholders’ approval and still pending completion.

Save as disclosed, the Group had no other significant
subsequent events occurred after December 31, 2022
which would have material impact on the performance and
the value of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmED N

As of December 31, 2022, the Group had a total of 9,668
fulltime employees (December 31, 2021: 8,454 employees).
For FY2022, the staff cost (including Directors’ remuneration
in the form of salaries and other benefits) was
approximately RMB1,780 million (FY2021: RMB1,180
million). The increase in number of staff as well as the
corresponding staff cost was mainly due to consolidation of
certain hospitals during the year.

The Group ensured that the remuneration packages of
employees remain competitive and the remuneration level of
its employees was determined on the basis of performance
with reference to the profitability of the Group, industry
remuneration standards and market conditions within the
general framework of the Group’s remuneration system. The
Group has also adopted the Share Option Scheme and the
Share Award Scheme so as to provide incentives or rewards
to eligible participants for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

In Hong Kong, the Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
"MPF Scheme") under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government
(together with the MPF Scheme, the “Defined Contribution
Schemes”). These subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
The Group’s employer contributions to the Defined
Contribution Schemes vest fully and immediately with the
employees when contributed into the schemes. Accordingly,
(i) for each of the two years ended December 31, 2022,
there was no forfeiture of contributions under the Defined
Contribution Schemes; and (ii)
contributions available for the Group to reduce its existing
level of contributions to the Defined Contribution Schemes
as at December 31, 2022.

there were no forfeited

For the latest developments of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement
Dispute, please refer to the paragraph headed “Yan Hua IOT
Agreement Dispute” under the section “Directors’ Report”
to this report.

EEENWED AN

AEBEFBRAMLCENHBRRIMNE T M
B2NMBEMTRNELENPREEZSHE
(ER®RESHE  SBIREHRKFED -
EUENBARBBETIEKRAN —ELHlX
e RBEEZRHE - HRXBBEIAEEZS
FFEIMREERMNFEEREAR - AKH
M5 E A RET I B EHRE ML ETE
HEFE2HRAEEENES - ALt - ()8
F202F12A3MHIEMEAFESF  HE
AR EH KA ST TORUERE K KGR
202212 H318 - B E 2 8 BH ZHBUE KR
EEE AR EE R EHKETEIMNIRFHRK
IKHLE o

EBALOTHEFENSER BB
AHEEFGRE ]2 [FIIOTHES #)

EHERZERERAT

B FERE

29






ES5 T

DIRECTORS’ REPORT




32

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERSE

The Directors are pleased to present this report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2022.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
is mainly engaged in the provision of general healthcare
hospital management services, and also group
“"GPO")
derived business from hospitals in Mainland China. Details of
the principal activities of the Company’'s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 49 to the consolidated

services,

purchasing organisation (i.e. business and other

financial statements.

A fair review of the business of the Group and a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties being faced by the
Group, as well as the business outlook of the Group
(including key performance indicators of future development
of the Group) are provided in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 10 to 29 of this annual report.
Relevant discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group's performance for
the year ended December 31, 2022 and the material factors
underlying its results and financial position are provided in
the paragraph headed “Segment Results” under the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
15 to 17 and in the paragraph headed “Financial Review”
under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 24 to 25 of this annual report.

Significant events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the Reporting Period and up to the date of
this Directors’ Report, if any, are set out in the paragraph
headed “Subsequent Events” on pages 26 to 27 of this
annual report.
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As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group recognizes the
importance of good environmental stewardship. In this
connection, the Group has strictly adopted and implemented
policies and procedures to conduct environmental protection
work on a standard which is not less stringent than the
prevailing environmental laws and regulations of the PRC.
We believe that we were in compliance with all relevant
PRC laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
in all material respects during the year ended December 31,
2022 and as at the date of this Directors’ Report. No
material claims, lawsuits, penalties or
administrative sanctions were reported to our management.

environmental

The Group has formulated the “Hazardous Substances
Safety Management Plan” ((EEWEZ 2 EE512])) and the
“Medical Waste Management System” ({EEZEEEYE 12§
J£)) for all hospitals according to the relevant requirements
of the "“Environmental Protection Law of the People's
Republic of China” ((FZEARHEMEIIRIF(REE)). The above
systems focus on the management of hazardous substances
(containing hazardous chemicals and medical
including storage location, container labelling, protection,
leakage handling and disposal in use. Hospitals conduct
supervisions and inspections mainly on storage and labelling
on hazardous chemicals and conclude the analysis results on
a quarterly basis. As required by the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Energy Conservation” ({1 Z A 4L H1
B &4 & JR)%)), the Group formulated the “Optimization
System of Resource Decision” ((ERAFRERFIE)), which
focuses on the management of resource decision-making
process and specifies the requirements on the quality,
reasonable allocation and use of newly procured resources.
The Group monitors the outcome of such decision upon its
implementation, and assesses the effectiveness and safety
by using relevant information and makes further decision so
as to ensure the effective implementation of the above
policies.

waste),
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

Meanwhile, the Group has formulated the “Utilities Safety
Management Plan” ({RR&EELEEEFE])), “Safety and
Protection Management Plan” ((Z2#EETE])) and
“Medical Technology Safety Management Plan” (& & : i
ZEE 5 28l)), and passed the “Facility Safety
Management Plan” ((&iEZ2EETE])) to ensure the
effective implementation of the above plans. The Group has
formulated the “Radiation Safety Management Plan” ({H &}
Z2E1#51El)) and “Radiation Emergency Plan” (#8571 &=
f82)) for all hospitals, which focuses on the management
of radiation safety and specifies the requirements on all
radiation equipment, protection and radiation-related waste
treatment. Every year, qualified testing and rating agencies
are engaged to monitor the radiation level of all radiological
equipment and workplaces in the hospitals. Moreover, the
hospitals carry out drills against radiation accidents and
evaluate and conclude the responsiveness.

The Company's environmental, social and governance report
will be published on the same day as this report, which
contains details of the Group’s environmental, social and
governance measures.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and
belief as at the date of this Directors’ Report, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group.

The Group is committed to operating in a sustainable
interests of our
stakeholders Substantial Shareholders,
employees, patients, customers, suppliers, business partners
and the community.

manner while balancing the various

including our

An account of the Group’s relationship with its Substantial
Shareholders is included in the “Interests of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and Underlying

Shares"” set out on pages 49 to 50 of this annual report.
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The Group considers its employees as the key to
sustainable business growth. We are committed to providing
all employees a safe and harassment-free working
environment with equal opportunities in relation to
employment, remuneration management, training and career
development. incorporated

Corporate Responsibility Policy and Employment Policy.

This commitment is in our
Workplace safety is a priority of the Group that, with due
awareness of all employees throughout the year, the Group
was able to maintain a high standard of health and safety
measures in all company activities. We have in place a fair
and effective performance appraisal system and incentive
bonus schemes that are designed to motivate and reward
employees at all levels, which helps to deliver their best
performance and achieve business performance targets. For
talent acquisition and continuous development, the Group
offers training programs as well as leadership and talent
development programs for talents with different academic
backgrounds. The Group believes that direct and effective
communication is essential for good partnership built-up
between management and employees. The Group holds
regular
Company developments and obtain their feedbacks and

meetings and forums to brief employees on
suggestions.
As a patient-oriented healthcare services provider, we

patients as one of the most important
stakeholders. We are committed to serving our patients to

consider

the best of our ability and continually enhancing the level of
service excellence. The Group has embraced new media
platforms as an effective communication channel with our
patients to collect feedbacks and help us identify areas for
further improvement.

The Group is committed to upholding the highest ethical and
professional standards when dealing with suppliers and
contractors. To integrate CSR principles throughout our GPO
business, the Group has implemented the Group Purchasing
Policy and Principles, and a Supplier Code of Conduct to
facilitate a common means whereby we can better
communicate with our business partners regarding their
compliance with local regulations governing labor, health and
safety, and the environment. In order to have a better and
close monitoring of supplier performance, our procurement
department conduct supplier performance review annually
targeting our major suppliers and contractors, and will
communicate with the suppliers that have unsatisfactory
rating for rectification or improvements.
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The results of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income on pages 117 to 118 of this annual report.

The Board proposes to pay a 2022 Final Dividend of 3.7 HK
cents (equivalent to approximately RMB3.2 cents) per Share
for FY2022 (FY2021: final dividend: 12 HK cents (equivalent
to approximately RMB9.8 cents)). The proposed 2022 Final
Dividend will be payable to Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on June
13, 2023 (Tuesday). Based on the number of Shares in
issue of the Company as of December 31, 2022, the total
amount of 2022 Final Dividends is approximately HK$48
million. Subject to the approval by Shareholders at the
annual general meeting to be held on June 1, 2023
(Thursday), it is expected that the 2022 Final Dividend will
be distributed on or before July 19, 2023 (Wednesday).

The Group is not aware of any arrangement under which a
Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

According to the dividend policy of the Group, subject to
compliance with applicable rules and regulations (including
Cayman Islands laws) and the articles of association of the
Company, pay dividend to the
Shareholders when the Group recorded net profit during the
period and payment of dividend would not affect its normal
operation. The Company intends to share its profits with
in the form of annual dividend and the
be used for the Group's

the Company will

Shareholders
remaining net profits will
development and operations.

The Company’s ability to pay dividends will depend upon,
among other things, the general financial condition of the
Group, the Group's current and future operations, liquidity
position and capital requirement of the Group as well as
dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries. The
payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Cayman Islands laws and articles
of association of the Company.
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The dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from time
to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will
be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Group
for the year ended December 31,
37 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

2022 are set out in note

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2022 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 121
to 122 of this annual report.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the
Cayman lIslands, the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or
Shareholders subject to the provisions of the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company and provided
that immediately following the distribution or dividend, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

dividends to

As at December 31, 2022, the Company’s share premium
amounted to RMB5,614,571,000 (as at December 31, 2021:
RMB5,785,472,000), subject to a solvency test, is available
for distribution to the Shareholders.

Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year ended December 31, 2022 are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and

non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five

financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
is set out on page 288 of this annual report.

This summary does not form part of the audited financial

statements,

statements.
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Details of the borrowings of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2022 are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in this Directors’
Report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended December 31,
2022.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, sales to the
Group’s five largest customers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 13.4% (2021: 18.1%) of the total sales for
the year and sales to the largest customer accounted for
approximately 6.6% (2021: 9.3%) of the total sales.
Purchases from the Group’'s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 23.5% (2021: 19.1%)
of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 7.6% (2021:
5.1%) of the total purchases.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the
Directors nor any of their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital), had any direct or indirect interest in
the five largest customers or the five largest suppliers of
the Group during the year ended December 31, 2022.
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The articles of association of the Company provides that
every Director of the Company should be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a
Director, in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, in which judgment is given in his/her favor, or in
which he is acquitted.

The Company maintains a directors’ liability insurance policy
against potential legal liabilities and related expenses that
may be incurred by the Directors in the event of any
litigation.

The Directors during the year ended December 31, 2022
and up to the date of this Directors’ Report are as follows:

Mr. Song Qing (Chairman of the Board)

Mr. Yu Hai (Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on February 27, 2023)

Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Shan Baojie (Vice President)

Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer)
(Resigned on February 27, 2023)

Mr. Hu Hui

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix
Mr. Fu Tingmei (Appointed on February 27, 2023)
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy
(Resigned on November 30, 2022)

None of the Directors has any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with one another.
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The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 99 to
108 of this annual report. Save as disclosed, there are no
other changes to the Directors’ information as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Each of the service agreements/letters of appointment of
the Directors can be terminated by either party giving to the
other party not less than one month notice in writing.

Pursuant to the letters of appointment, each of Mr. Wu Ting
Yuk Anthony, Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong, Mr. Lee Kar Chung
Felix, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy and Mr. Fu Tingmei is
entitled to an annual director’'s fee of HK$300,000. Ms. Chiu
Kam Hing Kathy has resigned as independent non-executive
Director on November 30, 2022 and received the annual
directors fee on a pro rata basis.

None of our Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into or
intends to enter into a service contract with any member of
our Group which is not terminable by the employer within
one year without payment of compensation (other than the
statutory compensation).

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals in the Group and remuneration
payable to members of senior management by band are set
out in notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.
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The remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management is subject to review of the Remuneration
Committee and approval by the Board, such remuneration is
determined by taking into account of the relevant
individual's experience, responsibilities, workload and time
commitment to the Group and the operating results of the

Group and comparable market statistics.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company believes that all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Mr. Song Qing is a director and the chairman of the board
of CR Healthcare (the controlling shareholder of the
Company); Mr. Yu Hai is a director, vice chairman and the
general manager of CR Healthcare; Mr. Shan Baojie is the
vice general manager of CR Healthcare; and Ms. Ren Yuan
is a director of the subsidiaries of CR Healthcare. Mr. Cheng
Libing was a director and the vice-chairman of CR
Healthcare and resigned on December 30, 2022. CR
Healthcare specializes in health industry investment and
operation management, is one of the key health service
industry platform created by CR Holdings. CR Healthcare is
committed to the long-term development of China’s medical
and healthcare services, actively participates
medical reform, and proactively explores and
involves in the investment, operation and management of
hospitals and healthcare industries in the PRC. In addition to
being the single largest shareholder of the Company, CR
Healthcare also operates and manages a number of medical
institutions in certain provinces of China including Liaoning,
Jiangxi, Yunnan and Guangdong and Guangxi, etc.

in China’s
system

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, as of December
31, 2022, none of the Directors or their respective close
associates had engaged
business which competes or
business of the Group.

in or had any interest in any
may compete with the
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares,

Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company or its Associated Corporations

As of December 31, 2022, the interests/short positions of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company in
the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) to be entered into the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

Long Positions in Shares of the
Company

Capacity/
Nature of interest

Long position/

Name of Director short position

Ry e

F HEmtE

Song Qing Beneficial owner Long position
N EREEA HE
Ren Yuan Beneficial owner Long position
Fiz EnEA A TE
Wu Ting Yuk, Beneficial owner Long position
Anthony
HAE B ERBEAA wE
Cheng Libing™ Beneficial owner Long position
[PAVESS EREAA LS
Notes:

1 Mr. Cheng Libing has resigned as a Director on February 27, 2023.

(2) This includes also the long positions of the Award Shares, which have been
declared to be granted by the Company to the corresponding Directors on
August 31, 2018 and which has been vested.

EERBEITBRAERAQALH
HPBZERD - HERGRE
EEZERNRAXA

M2022F12A31HB - A RREER&EST
BABRARAB SEAMMAEEZR(EER
FBHREBEGHIEXVE) 2 B&m - BERHD
RERETHRSB @ IBEEHRIAEEMNEXV
HETRFESHHAMEG AN A) KB ZFT (R
RREEREBEES RIS KR ZZEEXHER
AREEERBENERSAR) 5 (b)AS
ABARRIEBESHRBAEGHEIHETE
Z B MR S(c) iR i LT AR A 8+ ATk
RIRESTRIZB A S AN R &) KB P 2 (4
W/ KRBT

RAERTRBINER

Number of Approximate
ordinary shares percentage of
(Note) shareholding

=gl diavr 4=
(fifzE) FERBAIBE S
%
400,000? 0.03
300,000@ 0.02
1,000,000@ 0.08
1,774,7462 0.14

i

(1) AR A 2023F 227 HETESE -

(2) EHRBEARNANR2018F8A3THEEE FHEE
EZRBROMEENGTE  EHE2HUESE -
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2022, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were deemed or taken to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31,

of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

The Company has conditionally adopted the Share Option
Scheme as of September 30, 2013.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
incentivize or reward the Eligible Participants (defined
below) for their contribution or potential contribution to

the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, the Board
may grant options to any full-time or part-time
employees, potential employees,
consultants, executives or officers (including executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive Directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries at its sole

consultants or

discretion and any suppliers, customers, consultants,
agents and advisers who, in the absolute discretion of
the Board, has contributed or will contribute to our
Group (collectively “Eligible Participants”).
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The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from September 30, 2013,
after which time no further option will be granted but
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full force, and effective in all other respects
to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any options granted prior thereto and other rights as
may be required in accordance with the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme and options granted prior
thereto but not yet exercised shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not, in
aggregate, exceed 83,376,300 Shares, being 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Listing Date (with the over-allotment option fully
exercised), which is also the total number of Shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme as
at the date of this annual report, representing
approximately 6.43% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted to any grantee
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
under the Share Option Scheme, in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant, shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of Shares in issue.

BT EIE2013F9 A30 HALIEA &
AL AE0F - PR TABE T REAE
BERESNEDARE R
VHEMBEMIEELEBEANEGH
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An offer of a grant shall remain open for acceptance
by the Eligible Participant for a period of 14 days from
the date of offer, provided that no such offer shall be
open for acceptance after the expiry of the effective
period of the Share Option Scheme. An option shall be
deemed as has been granted to (subject to certain
restrictions in the Share Option Scheme), and accepted
by, the Eligible Participant (the “Grantee”) and taken
effect upon the issuance of an exercise notice, if the
Company receives a copy of the offer document
(including the document for the acceptance of share
option) duly signed by the grantee (the "Offer
Document”), together with a remittance in favor of our
Company in the amount of HK$1.00 in consideration
for the granting of the option on or before the last
date for acceptance. The remittance is not refundable
under any circumstances and shall be deemed as
payment of part of the exercise price. Once accepted,
the option is taken as granted from the date of offer
to the relevant Grantee.

There is no general requirement that an option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised. The period during which an option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme (the "Option Period”) shall be the
period of time to be notified by our Board to each
Grantee as determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that such period shall not exceed 10
years from the commencement date of the vesting
period as stated in the respective Grantee's Offer
Document.
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The price per share for subscription by a Grantee
pursuant to the exercise of share options (the
"Exercise Price”) shall be determined by the Board,
but in any event shall not be lower than the highest
of:

()  the official closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets
on the date an option is offered (the "Offer
Date”);

(i)  the average of the official closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Offer Date; and

(iii)  the nominal value of the Shares.

Since the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme,
and during the year ended December 31, 2022, no share
option had been granted, exercised, expired, cancelled or
lapsed and there is no outstanding share option under the
Share Option Scheme. The remaining life of the Share
Option Scheme is approximately 5 months as at the date of
this annual report.

The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme as a
means to recognise the contribution of and provide
incentives for the key management personnel including
Directors and senior management, employed experts and
core employees of the Group. The Share Award Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 vyears
commencing from July 7, 2014 (the "Adoption Date"”) on
which the Board adopted the Share Award Scheme and is
administrated by the Board and the trustee of the Share
Award Scheme.
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In order to provide more flexibility in the administration and
implementation of the Share Award Scheme, the Board
resolved on May 25, 2015 to make amendments to the
terms of the Share Award Scheme and the scheme rules,
having retrospective effect from the Adoption Date, to the
effect that the Board may, from time to time, in its absolute
discretion, determine if the Award Shares shall be granted
to a Selected Participant with or without payment of a price
per Award Share payable by the Selected Participant (the
“Grant Price”) which shall be notified by the Board to each
Selected Participant. In determining whether the Selected
Participant shall pay a Grant Price for the Award Shares and
the amount of the Grant Price, as the case may be, the
Board shall take into consideration matters, including but not
limited to the Selected Participant’'s position, experience,
years of service, performance and contribution to the
Company, its subsidiaries and/or associated entities. The
be settled according to the payment
schedule determined by the Board.

Grant Price shall

The Board also resolved on August 31, 2018 to make
further amendments to the terms of the Share Award
Scheme to the effect that the maximum number of the
Award Shares, which have been and to be awarded by the
Board throughout the duration of the scheme, to be revised
to 5% of the total
Company as at the date of the abovementioned resolution
(i.e. 64,833,825 Shares), representing approximately 5.00%

number of issued Shares of the

of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
this annual report, and the maximum number of the Award
Shares to each of the Selected Participants to be revised to
1% of the total number of issued Shares as at the date of
the abovementioned resolution (i.e. 12,966,765 Shares).

The Board will implement the Share Award Scheme in
accordance with the scheme rules. Pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme, the Board may from time to time while the
scheme is in force and subject to all applicable laws,
determine such vesting criteria and conditions and vesting
periods. The Company shall comply with the relevant Listing
Rules when granting the Award Shares.
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Since the Adoption Date of Share Award Scheme and up to
December 31, 2022, an aggregate of 32,212,216 Award
Shares have been granted pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme subject to certain vesting criteria and conditions. No
Award Shares were granted under the Share Award Scheme
within FY2022. Details of the interests of the Selected
Participants in the Award Shares are as follows:

BRI EEGEI RN B B E2022F
12A318 - BIBERHZE & £FH
32,212,216 LE IR0 - AR E TEHBIZ
ERIEEAR - F£2022FHREER @ #8E
RIR AR (0 S BN AT 813 RO SR AR 1D - BB
HEFRBROPORERFHEOT

Number of Award Shares

RHRHEE
Closing price of
Award Shares
immediately
before the
Unvested as at Unvested as at relevant vesting
Number of January 1,  Vested during Cancelled  Lapsed during  December 31, date during FY
Award Shares 2022 FY2022  during FY2022 FY2022 2022 2022 (HK$)
20224
BBEE
HE202F BEH AR
H220202% 20224 ] ‘ 20224 12A31H [l
ZHRHBE 1A1BREE WRFERE WX HE BMEBEEAN AGE ()
Name of Director B
Song Qing FN 400,000 200,000 200,000 = = = 4.58
Ren Yuan R 300,000 150,000 150,000 — — — 4.50
Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony HHER 1,500,000 500,000 500,000 — — — 4.70
Cheng Libing (Resigned on L& (720235 400,000 300,000 300,000 = = = 4.50
February 27, 2023) 2A27B %)
5 highest paid individuals 12022 F BB EE A 1,380,000 690,000 690,000 = = = 4.66
during FY2022 (excluding BEMKRHEE
any Directors) in BA(FREER
aggregate EE)(aH#)
Other grantees in aggregate ~ EtERA (A£) 15,959,800 8,378,900 8,189,900 — 189,000 — 4.68
Notes: x
1. The Award Shares granted under the Share Award Scheme as set out in 1. ERATEIRIR () B ET IR A SEE AR 1D ([HE B 58

the above table (the “Relevant Award Shares”) were approved by the
Board on August 31, 2018 and were granted pursuant to the relevant
agreements that came into effect in May 2019.

2. 50% of the Relevant Award Shares were acquired by the Selected
Participants at HK$5.27 per Share, and the remaining 50% were granted
by the Company to the Selected Participants at zero consideration.

3. The Relevant Award Shares were vested during the period from FY2020 to
FY2022. The first batch of Award Shares were vested on the date when
the relevant annual assessment of year 2019 was completed, the second
batch of Award Shares where vested on the date when the relevant
annual assessment of year 2020 was completed, and the remaining
portion of Award Shares (i.e. the third batch) were vested on the date
when the relevant annual assessment of year 2021 was completed.

The remaining life of the Share Award Scheme is
approximately 1 year and 2 months as at the date of this
annual report.
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders and
Other Persons in Shares and Underlying
Shares

As of December 31, 2022, the following persons (other than
the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or
were deemed or taken to have an interest and/or short
position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which would
fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO and entered into the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company.

Name of Shareholder

BEREE

Capacity/Nature of interest

i/ tEmtE

China Resources Company Interest of a controlled

Limited corporation
hREEEGR AT AR

Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Interest of a controlled

Group, Inc. corporation
“ZxHBEREE X LEER
L: Long position
Notes:
1. (1) 463,681,516 of these shares are directly held by CRH (Medical) Limited.

CRH (Medical) Limited is wholly owned by China Resources Healthcare
Group Limited. China Resources Healthcare Group Limited is wholly
owned by CRH (Healthcare) Limited. CRH (Healthcare) Limited is wholly
owned by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited is wholly owned by CRC Bluesky Limited.
CRC Bluesky Limited is wholly owned by China Resources Inc., which is
wholly owned by China Resources Company Limited; and (2) 10,638,000
of these shares are directly held by Commotra Company Limited which is

wholly owned by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited.

2. Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. is the sole shareholder of Mitsubishi
UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation whilst the latter is directly holding the
entire shareholding interest in First Sentier Investors Holdings Pty Limited.
First Sentier Investors Holdings Pty Limited (via its wholly-owned
subsidiary First Sentier Investors Asia Holdings Limited) held the entire
interest in First Sentier Investors (Hong Kong) Limited and the latter
directly held 77,645,666 Shares (representing approximately 5.98% of the

issued shares of the Company).
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Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2022, the
Directors were not aware of any person (other than the
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had an
interest or a short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

Save as the details as set out in the paragraphs headed
"Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or its Associated Corporations”, “Share Option
Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” in this Directors’
Report, at no time during the year ended December 31,
2022 has any right to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate been granted to Directors or their
respective spouse or children under the age of 18, and
none of any such right has been exercised by them; and
none of the Company and any of its subsidiaries has been a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their
respective spouse or children under the age of 18, to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

On February 14, 2022, Unison Champ Premium Limited
(formerly known as Unison Champ Limited, which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, “Unison Champ”)
and CMH Healthcare Investment Co., Ltd. (the "“General
Partner”) entered into a letter agreement (the “Withdrawal
Letter”), pursuant to which Unison Champ requested the
General Partner to consent to its withdrawal as a Limited
Partner in whole from CMH Healthcare Fund, L.P. (the
“"Fund”) (the “Withdrawal”) and cancellation of its entire
interests in the Fund (the “Cancellation of Interests"”) and
the General Partner has given its consent to the Withdrawal
and the Cancellation of Interests.

CR Healthcare (which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR
Holdings) holds 35.76% of the issued shares of the
Company and is the Company’'s single largest shareholder
and controlling shareholder, while the General Partner is
held 40% by China Resource Healthcare Fund Management
Limited (which is also a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR
Holdings), and the General Partner is therefore a connected
person of the Company by virtue of being an associate of
our controlling shareholder.
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On November 4, 2022, China Resources Wugang General
Hospital (“Wugang Hospital”) and Runjia Property Service
(Wuhan) Co. Ltd. (@ wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Resources Lifestyle Services Limited (“CR Mixc")) (as
service provider) entered into a property services
agreement, pursuant to which the latter shall provide
property management services, including cleaning, security
and fire safety control, to Wugang Hospital for a term of
one year at a fee of approximately RMB5.887 million (value
added tax inclusive).

CR Holdings is the controlling shareholder of the Company,
and CR Mixc is a subsidiary of CR Holdings; while Runjia
Property Service (Wuhan) Co. Ltd. is a subsidiary of CR
Mixc, it is therefore a connected person of the Company.

On December 1, 2022, Wugang Group Co., Ltd. (“Wugang
Group”) entered into framework agreements with Wugang
Hospital pursuant to which, among other things, (i) Wugang
Group together with Wugang Hospital will, at the request
and cost of Wugang Hospital, enter into construction
agreements with third party contractors for expansion of the
existing inpatient complex (“Expansion Project”), with the
construction consideration to be borne by Wugang Hospital;
and (ii) after completion of the Expansion Project, Wugang
Hospital (as lessee) will rent the new inpatient complex to
be constructed from Wugang Group (as lessor) with the
aforesaid construction consideration as the rental fee paid in
advance for a lease term of 20 years.

Wugang Group is a substantial shareholder of China
Resources Wugang (Hubei) Hospital Management Co., Ltd.
(“CR Wugang”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, which does not fall within the ambit of
insignificant subsidiaries under Rule 14A.09 of the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, Wugang Group is a connected person of
the Company at its subsidiary level. Wugang Hospital is a
sponsored hospital wholly owned by CR Wugang.

After the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company has
entered into certain continuing connected transaction. Please
refer to the paragraph headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Subsequent Event” of this report for the
details.
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The Company and CR Holdings entered into the
pharmaceuticals, medical device and medical consumables
supply framework agreement (the “2019 CRH PMM
Framework Agreement”) for a fixed term of three years on
November 7, 2019. Pursuant to the 2019 CRH PMM
Framework Agreement, CR Holdings may, through its
subsidiaries, supply pharmaceuticals, medical device, medical
consumables and non-medical supply to the Group and its
sponsored hospitals from time to time. The Group and its
sponsored hospitals may place purchase orders for PMM
items with CR Holdings or its subsidiaries from time to time
and CR Holdings or its subsidiaries may sell the products to
the Group and its sponsored hospitals at a price in
accordance with the agreed pricing policy. The details of
each purchase order, including price, payment terms and
delivery arrangement, are to be separately agreed in
accordance with the principles laid down in the 2019 CRH
PMM Framework Agreement. The annual caps for the
purchase of PMM items under the 2019 CRH PMM
Framework Agreement for the three financial years ended
December 31, 2022 are RMB1.00 billion, RMB1.14 billion
and RMB1.40 billion, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the amount of
the purchase orders under the 2019 CRH PMM Framework
Agreement paid/payable by the Group was RMB516 million.

As the 2019 CRH PMM Framework Agreement expired on
December 31, 2022, the Company and CR Holdings entered
into the new pharmaceuticals, medical device and medical
consumables supply framework agreement on November
18, 2022 (the “2022 CRH PMM Framework Agreement”),
for a fixed term of three years commencing from January 1,
2023 to December 31, 2025, whereby the annual caps are
also renewed thereupon. The 2022 CRH PMM Framework
Agreement and the proposed annual caps for the 2022 CRH
PMM Framework Agreement were approved at the
extraordinary general meeting on December 29, 2022. The
annual caps for the purchase of PMM items under the 2022
CRH PMM Framework Agreement for the three financial
years ending December 31, 2025 are RMB0.90 billion,
RMB1.10 billion and RMB1.20 billion, respectively.

CR Holdings is a controlling shareholder and a connected
person of the Company.
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The Company and China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd.
("CR Bank") entered into a strategic cooperation agreement
(the “2019 CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement”)
for a fixed term for three years on November 7, 2019.
Pursuant to the 2019 CR Bank Strategic Cooperation
Agreement, the Group and its sponsored hospitals may
place deposits with CR Bank and use other financial
services and products of CR Bank, including (but not limited
to) the provision of letters of credit, guarantee, loans with
collaterals, bill of exchange and discount services,
assignment of receivables, RMB and foreign exchange
settlement, entrusted loans and collaterals, financial and
cash management services, financial advisory services and
other financial services and products as agreed by the
parties.

The Company and China Resources SZITIC Trust Co., Ltd.
(“CR Trust") entered into a strategic cooperation agreement
(the “2019 CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement”)
for a fixed term for three years on November 7, 2019.
Pursuant to the 2019 CR Trust Strategic Cooperation
Agreement, the Group and its sponsored hospitals may use
the services and products provided by CR Trust, including
(but not limited to) cash management, asset management,
custodian trust loan services, assignment of receivables,
advisory services in relation to redemptory monetary capital
for sale, and other financial or trust services and products as
agreed by the parties.
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The annual caps under 2019 CR Bank Strategic Cooperation  J%Z8R2019% MR TERE A 1E 7% f2 20194 4
Agreement and 2019 CR Trust Strategic Cooperation {E:EEiREAEIEE FEE20229412 831
Agreement for the three financial years ended December HZ =AM KFEZFE LRFHIIMT
31, 2022 were set out as follows:

For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2020 2021 2022
B E20206F BE20214 BE20226F
12A31H 12A31H 12H318
(RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million)
(AREBET) (AREBET) (AREBET)
Maximum daily deposit FHREBRTT 400 400 400
amount placed with HEAZRT
CR Bank (inclusive of REB(BE
interest receivable) Mol FE WA B
Maximum daily principal BHREHRTR 400 400 400
amount and interest in ERETHT
relation to financial PATR (i) & A
products to be provided EnfEAK
by CR Bank and CR BAEEER
Trust Motel R )
Maximum service fees and  ZEHIRTT K EH 8 8 8
commissions for other E5EH8 FLALR
financial products and TRt
services to be provided Em R R R
by CR Bank and CR mmRBER
Trust ik
Note: The above maximum daily deposit amount or daily principal amount and 3 : LillEARSGERLBENEALALLELANEER
interest is applicable for each day during the relevant period, and is REEBEENE—H  WIRESAERENHBEZ —
calculated on an individual basis remaining as of the end of each day, e BTHEHpI—BAEENSHEAHITE -

without aggregating the amount incurred on the days before.
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In 2022, the actual highest amount of the Group and the
Sponsored Hospitals' daily deposit balance (inclusive of
interest receivable) and daily principal amount and interest in
relation to financial products to be provided by CR Bank
amounted to RMB272 million and RMB50 million,
respectively. In 2022, the service fees and commissions for
other financial products and services provided by CR Bank

were nil.

In 2022, the Group and the Sponsored Hospitals did not
have any balance of financial products provided by CR Trust.
In 2022,
financial products and services provided by CR Trust were
nil.

the service fees and commissions for other

As the 2019 CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement
expired on December 31, 2022, the Company and CR Bank
entered into the new strategic cooperation agreement on
18, 2022 (the "“2022 CR Bank Strategic
Cooperation Agreement”), for a fixed term of three years
commencing from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2025,
whereby the annual caps are also renewed thereupon. The
2022 CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement and the
proposed annual caps for the 2022 CR Bank Strategic
Cooperation Agreement were approved at the extraordinary
general meeting on December 29, 2022.

November

As the 2019 CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement
expired on December 31, 2022, the Company and CR Trust
entered into the new strategic cooperation agreement on
18, 2022 (the "“2022 CR Trust Strategic
Cooperation Agreement”), for a fixed term of three years
commencing from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2025,
whereby the annual caps are also renewed thereupon. The
2022 CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement and the
proposed annual caps for the 2022 CR Trust Strategic
Cooperation Agreement were approved at the extraordinary
general meeting on December 29, 2022.

November
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The annual caps under 2022 CR Bank Strategic Cooperation
Agreement and 2022 CR Trust Strategic Cooperation
Agreement for the three financial years ending December

31, 2025 are set out as follows:

Maximum daily deposit
amount placed with CR
Bank (inclusive of
Interest receivable) Mo

Maximum daily principal
amount and interest in
relation to financial
products to be provided
by CR Bank and CR
Trust (Note)

Maximum service fees and
commissions for other
financial products and
services to be provided
by CR Bank and CR
Trust

Note: The above maximum daily deposit amount or daily principal amount and i

BFIRNERRT
MWEHRRF
HeE(BRE
MR B

ERRTAER
R0 TRt
HO < @ E am A
BHRERAE
TRRFE

FERRITRE
BEERT
R EM
TEEmR
RGN &=
BR%5 & K 48
&

For the

year ending
December 31,
2023

B E2023F
12H318

(RMB' million)
(AR¥RET)
500

500

10

interest is applicable for each day during the relevant period, and is

calculated on an individual basis remaining as of the end of each day,

without aggregating the amount incurred on the days before.

CR Holdings is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
and CR Bank and CR Trust are subsidiaries of CR Holdings,
therefore both of them are connected persons of the

Company.

For the

year ending
December 31,
2024

HE2024F
12A31H

(RMB million)
(AREBETT)
600

600

12

TR 2022 2B IRTTELRE & 1E W 2 20222 )
EEEME S EERTE T E 2202512 A31
A=A BRFEZFE LRFNOAT

For the

year ending
December 31,
2025

B E20254F
12H31H

(RMB' million)
(AR¥RET)
700

700

14

LB RBREFREEXT AL EERNEER
RNERSRNE R TRTAEREOREE—
AE BTEAM—HEENSHEAHH -
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CR Finance Lease Cooperation Agreement

The Company and China Resources Leasing Company
Limited (“CR Leasing”) into a cooperation
agreement on November 7, 2019 (the “Finance Lease
Cooperation Agreement”), and pursuant to which the
Group may use general finance lease services (“Finance
Lease Services"), factoring services and related consultancy
("Other Financial Services”) provided by CR
Leasing. The annual caps for certain services under the

entered

services

Finance Lease Cooperation Agreement for the three financial
years ended December 31, 2022 are as follows:
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ERHEHESFln &

M2019F 1M A7 - ARFREEBHHERR
AR ([#EBAE DT LA EHsE ((MERE
EEBR) MASEZLFERAEBEER
HH—KRERERY ((MERERE])
P RIBIRE RABEZARE ([EttEBAR
%)  REMHESEHHERE FTHZE2022F12
A3MB =AM BRFEERBEAFE LR
I

For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2020 2021 2022
EZE2020%F BHZE2021%F B ZE2022%
12A31H 12A31H 12H318
(RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million)
(AREBET) (AREBET) (AREBET)
The maximum aggregate BMERERH 200 200 200
amount of the general = B
finance lease services
Maximum commission and/  #4 & & R 7% 13 13 13
or service fees in relation ek okl
to general finance lease %/ kiR B
services
Maximum commission and/  H & &b RS 28 28 28
or service fees for kol
factoring services and &/ kiR &

related consultancy
services

The commission and/or services fees to be paid by the
Company to CR Leasing in relation to the Finance Lease
Services and Other Financial Services to be provided under
the Finance Lease Cooperation Agreement should be
determined at arm’s length negotiation between the parties
with reference to the prevailing market prices for
comparable services, after taking into account various
factors, such as finance costs and normal market rate. Such
commission and/or services fees shall not be less favourable
than those offered for other independent customers by CR
Leasing.
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During the year ended December 31, 2022, (i) the aggregate
amount of Finance Lease Services of RMB3 million was
utilised by the Group; (i) the commission and/or service
fees in relation to Finance Lease Services were nil; and (iii)
the commission and/or service fees in relation to Other
Financial Services were nil.

CR Holdings is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
and CR Leasing, as a subsidiary of CR Holdings, is therefore
a connected person of the Company.

On September 17, 2020, the Company and CR
Pharmaceutical (together with its subsidiaries, the "“CR
Pharmaceutical Group”) entered into the cooperation

framework agreement (the "“Supply Chain Cooperation
Framework Agreement 2020"), which expired on
December 31, 2022 and pursuant to which the Group shall
provide CR Pharmaceutical Group Supply Chain
Management Services of medical supplies in relation to
establishment of regional
supply chain management procedures in order to improve
the efficiency of supply chain management of medical
supplies of CR Pharmaceutical Group and
corresponding costs. The Group shall receive management
service fees from CR Pharmaceutical Group for the
abovementioned services.

platforms and streamlining of

reduce the

The annual caps under the 2020 Supply Chain Cooperation
Framework Agreement for the three financial years ended
December 31, 2022 were RMB30 million, RMB50 million
and RMB70 million, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the amount of
management service fee income under the 2020 Supply
Chain Cooperation Framework Agreement receivable by the
Group was RMB3 million.
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As the Cooperation Framework Agreement 2020 expired on
December 31, 2022, the Company and CR Pharmaceutical
entered into the new cooperation framework agreement on
December 29, 2022 (the
Agreement 2023/2024"), for a fixed term of two years
commencing from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2024,
pursuant to which, caps are also
thereupon. The annual caps for the procurement of drugs
under Cooperation Framework Agreement 2023/2024 for the
two financial years ending December 31, 2024 are RMB74
million and RMB84 million, respectively.

“Cooperation Framework

the annual renewed

CR Holdings is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
and CR Pharmaceutical, as a subsidiary of CR Holdings, is
therefore a connected person of the Company.

On March 12, 2021, Hubei Runkang Healthcare
Management Co., Ltd. (“Hubei Runkang”, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) (as manager) and
Shenzhen Runtou Consulting Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Runtou
Consulting”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CR
Land) (as the principal) entered into a hospital management
agreement (the “Hospital Management Agreement”),
pursuant to which Shenzhen Runtou Consulting shall appoint
Hubei
management services for its Yuenianhua Rehabilitation
Hospital, Nanning City (the “Rehabilitation Hospital”) which
include the

Runkang to provide comprehensive operation and

introduction of management and operation
systems by Hubei Runkang, building management team of
the hospital, and the introduction of various resources such
as hospital brand and medical technology. It shall also rely
on the medical and technical resources of the Group in
enhancing various disciplines of the Rehabilitation Hospital.
The term shall 12, 2021 to
December 31, 2023 (both dates inclusive), a period of
approximately 2 years and 10 months. Under the same
terms, priority shall be given to the Group to renew the

commence from March

Hospital Management Agreement. During the preparation
period, Hubei Runkang shall charge a fixed monthly fee of
RMB450,000 which should be settled by Shenzhen Runtou
Consulting by the 11th day of the next month. If it is less
than one month, such fee shall be charged on a pro rata
basis. The first installment of such fee should be paid on or
before 5 working days from the effective date of the
Hospital Management Agreement. Starting from the official
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opening of the Rehabilitation Hospital, the service fee shall
then be settled by the Rehabilitation Hospital itself. The
service fee comprises three components: (1) the fixed fee of
RMB3.5 million per annum; (2) the income related fee which
is equivalent to 6% of the target income of Rehabilitation
Hospitals, and adjusted by a certain percentage according to
the deviation from the target income (there could be upward
or downward adjustments); and (3) the floating management
fee pegged to operating profit. The annual caps in respect
of transactions contemplated under the Hospital
Management Agreement for the three financial years ended
December 31, 2023 are RMB5,050,000, RMB9,400,000 and
RMB17,230,000, respectively. During the year ended
December 31, 2022, the transaction amount under the

mentioned agreement was RMB3 million.

CR Holdings is the controlling shareholder of the Company,
and CR Land is a subsidiary of CR Holdings;
Shenzhen Runtou Consulting is a subsidiary of CR Land, it is

while

therefore a connected person of the Company.

On November 22, 2021, China Resources Hospital
Management & Consulting Co. Ltd. (“CR Hospital
Management”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
and Resolink Software System (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.
("Resolink Software”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR
Holdings) (with Resolink Software representing the Resolink
Companies (i.e.
Information Technology Co. Ltd., Resolink Smart Technology
(Xi'an) Co. Ltd. and their subsidiaries), and all of them as
service providers) entered into the information technology
services framework agreement (the “2021
Technology Services Framework Agreement”) (for the

Resolink Software, Guangdong Resolink

Information

term from the date of the agreement to December 31,
2022). The Resolink Companies shall provide the relevant
information technology services to the Group and its
sponsored hospitals pursuant to the 2021
Technology Services Framework Agreement. The Resolink
Companies shall provide information technology services to
the Group and its Sponsored Hospitals during the term of
the agreement, including information technology operation
and maintenance services and information technology
service for specific projects. The Group and its Sponsored
Hospitals shall pay service fees to the corresponding
Resolink Companies for the information technology services

Information

BE -mMEEREREARELR  TER
BEBANARERER SN ZFBRAY =
BoFE - BE: (WETEERESFAR
¥s360& 7T (2) UL A BN F BB 1
E(AERBRBABIZREZ6% @ WikEF
EENREEER -—TAEDLFAEB AR MA
W) RQEKLEFEHOMNTHERE -
ERZTEeEEMBE T 2RERERS
ERBEMFEERIT : & £2023% 12 A31
B 1= B8 B FE 5 5l & A K%5,050,000
7T+ AR 9,400,000 % A R #17,230,000
T B E2022F12A31BIEFE - A& E
B LB REEENR S 2B AARKI00
B

EHEESARRRZERER - EEHEWS
EHEEZMBERAR - MARIEIRERASE
HEM MBRRMAARRB 2HEAL -

202111 A22H - EHEREEZEAE
RAG([EBEBE]  A2Fz2EHMBAR
7)) ERE S R ORI AR A7) ([R5
B4 EHEE22EMBRAR)(BREK
B R AR (BME &G  BREBER
BEMARAR - HEEEME (AR BRA
AREEZTEBHRBAR)  MEZEARE
RIEH)FET T BLRBEERGE (12021
ERARBEERGRE]) (REER A HZEA
MEZE2022%F12H31H 1E) - HE R QA%
20212 BME ARG ER B S AR E R T
BmEBTIERAERNESCRE - HER
NE R ZB KRR MANEE R T B LR
EERIRBEESLIRY  RIEEEEERD
= BRI AIE B BRI E LIRS - N&EE
RTBRERERFHESRMRY - 1S
FEEMNSEABRBEORECEREEN
BERRRZNRBER  REEAZRER
FRIGEFRUHEERBEERE - HBRERQ

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2022



based on the pricing of each specific service as agreed by
The service fees shall be calculated by
multiplying the actual volume of services with the unit price

both parties.

of the corresponding services. The corresponding annual
caps of the information technology services as provided by
the Resolink Companies to the Group and its sponsored
hospitals (including the services to be provided under the
2021 Information Technology Services Framework
Agreement since the signing date) for the two years ended
2022 were RMB4,000,000
respectively. During the vyear

December 31, and
RMB10,000,000,
December 31, 2022, the transaction amount of the Group
under the mentioned agreement was RMB3 million. The
2021

Agreement expired on December 31, 2022.

ended

Information Technology Services Framework

CR Holdings is the controlling shareholder of the Company,
and the Resolink Companies are subsidiaries of CR
Holdings, they are therefore connected persons of the
Company. The 2021 Information Technology Services
Framework Agreement expired on December 31, 2022.

CR Hospital
Holdings Company Limited (“CR Digital”) entered into the
agreement (the

Management and China Resources Digital

information technology services annual
"2023 Information Technology Services Annual
Agreement”) on January 11, 2023 for a fixed term of one
year commencing from January 1, 2023 to December 31,
2023, pursuant to which CR Digital and its subsidiaries shall
provide the relevant information technology services to the
Group and its Sponsored Hospitals pursuant to the 2023
Information Technology Services Annual Agreement. The
annual cap for the information technology services under
2023 Information Technology Services Annual Agreement is
RMB16 million.

CRC is the holding company of CR Holdings (a controlling
shareholder of the Company) and indirectly holds the entire
in CR Digital. Hence, CR Digital
connected person of the Company.

equity interests is a
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
issued his unqualified containing his
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in pages 52
to 61 of this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules.

Financial Information” and with reference to

auditor has letter

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the

abovementioned continuing connected transactions and

confirmed that for the year ended December 31, 2022:

() these transactions were entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group;

(i) these transactions were entered into either on normal
commercial terms, or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties;

(i) these transactions were entered into according to the
agreements governing them on terms that were fair
in the

and reasonable and interests of the

Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report, none of the related-party
transactions or continuing related-party transactions set out
in such note fall within the scope of discloseable connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction under the
Listing Rules. The connected and continuing connected
transactions of the Group are
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

in compliance with the
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In respect of the litigation case between the Company and
the Yanhua Parties (i.e. the Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua
Hospital) regarding the performance of the Yanhua 0T
Agreement in 2019, the Beijing Higher People's Court
handed down a final judgment (2020 Jing Minzhong No.110)
on November 22, 2021, which rejected the appeal filed by
Yanhua in 2020 and upheld the original judgment in 2019 as
follows: the major details are as follows: (1) the unilatera
termination of Yan Hua IOT Agreement by Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital is declared to be void and that the
parties shall continue to perform its obligations under the
Yan Hua 10T Agreement; (2) the amount of
RMB14,400,000, being the damages for breach of the Yan
Hua IOT Agreement, is to be paid by Yan Hua Phoenix to
CR Hospital Management & Consulting; (3) other reliefs
sought by CR Hospital Management & Consulting shall be
dismissed; and (4) other counterclaims of Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital shall be dismissed. As the Yanhua
Parties have been negligent in complying with the
abovementioned final judgment, the Company then filed an
application for enforcement with the Beijing Second
Intermediate People’s Court in January 2022, and then
accordingly received the liquidated damages amounted to
RMB14,400,000 and related overdue fine paid by Yanhua
Phoenix through the court enforcement procedure in April
2022. However, due to the Yanhua Parties’ persistent
refusal to perform the Yanhua IOT Agreement, the Company
brought a separate lawsuit against the Yanhua Parties in
September 2022 to seek compensation for the losses
suffered by the Company as a result of the Yanhua Parties’
breach of the Yanhua |OT Agreement (including the
management fee and supply chain fee receivable by the
Company from 2019 to the filing date). Such lawsuit is
currently in the hearing process of Beijing Second
Intermediate People’s Court. The Company will continue use
its best endeavours and take all appropriate actions to
protect the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
The Company will make further announcement in
accordance with the Listing Rules as and when appropriate
for the future progress of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement
dispute.
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Please refer to the announcements published by the
Company on January 15, 2019, January 21, 2019, April 17,

2019 and November 23, 2021 for more details.

No Director nor any connected entity of a Director had a
material
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the holding company of
the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party at any time during the year
ended December 31, 2022.

interest, either directly or indirectly, in any

In addition to certain connected transaction and continuing
connected transactions which have been disclosed in the
sections headed “Connected Transaction” and “Continuing
Connected Transactions” to this report respectively, on May
23, 2019, CR Hospital
subsidiary of the Company) as lessee and the Fengtai
branch of China Resources Land Hongjing (Beijing) Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (EEEE LS (At R) BHER
EAMRARLE57227]) (a branch company of a subsidiary of
CR Land) as lessor entered into a lease agreement (the
“"Lease Agreement”) in relation to the lease of the 14th
floor of China Resources Kunlun Center Office Building, No.
5, Courtyard No. 9, Fuyi Street, Fengtai District, Beijing, with
a total leasable floor area of 2,225.38 sq. m. for use as the
Group's office from June 1, 2019 to May 31, 2024.
Pursuant to the Lease Agreement, the rent for the period
from June 1, 2019 to May 31, 2022 is RMB393,246.90
(including value-added tax calculated at 9% and excluding
utility charges) per month, and for the period from June 1,
2022 to May 31, 2024, a sum of RMB405,063.67 (including
value-added tax calculated at 9% and excluding utility
charges and property management fees) per month. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated May 23, 2019.
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Other than the service contracts or letters of appointment
with the Directors, the Company has not entered into any
contract with any individuals, firms or corporate entities to
manage or regulate the whole or any substantial part of any
business of the Company during the year ended December
31, 2022.

The Company established the Audit Committee and
formulated the Rules and Procedures for Board Meetings
((EEE#E#A))) of the Company in accordance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on November 4,
2013. Its primary responsibilities include serving as a focal
point for communication among other Directors, the external
auditor and the internal auditor (where an internal audit
function exists) as regards their duties relating to financial
and other reporting, risk management and internal controls,
external and internal audits and such other financial and
accounting matters as the Board determines from time to
time, assisting the Board in providing an independent review
on the effectiveness of the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
overseeing the audit procedure, reviewing the Group's
financial and accounting policies and practices and
performing other duties and responsibilities as designated by
the Board.

As at December 31, 2022 and up to the publication date of
this annual report, the Audit Committee currently comprises
Hu Hui
namely Mr. Kwong

one non-executive Director, Mr. and two
independent non-executive Directors,
Kwok Kong (chairman of the committee) and Mr. Fu
Tingmei. The Audit Committee, with the
management of the Company, has reviewed the accounting
principles, accounting standards and methods adopted by
the Company, discussed the matters concerning risk
management and control, auditing and financial
reporting matters and reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2022.

together

internal
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The Company established the Remuneration Committee and
formulated the Rules and Procedures for Board Meetings
((BEgzEHA))) of the Company in compliance with Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on November 4,
2013. The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible
for: (i) making recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; (ii)
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
package of Directors and senior management; and (iii)
the performance-based
remuneration and ensure that no Directors or any of his

associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

reviewing and evaluating

As at December 31, 2022 and up to the publication date of
this annual report, the Remuneration Committee currently
consisted of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony
committee), Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix and Mr. Fu Tingmei.

(chairman of the

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
November 4, 2013 in compliance with the CG Code. The
Nomination Committee responsible for: (i)
identifying individuals suitably qualified as potential Board
members and selecting or making recommendation to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; (i) reviewing the structure, size and diversity
of the Board and the required skill mix as well as making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
ensure the implementation of the Company’s strategic goal,
(ili) assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and (iv) reviewing the qualification of
senior
Officer,
adoption.

is mainly

management nominated by the Chief Executive

reported to the Board for consideration and

As at December 31, 2022 and up to the publication date of
this annual report, the Nomination Committee consisted of
one executive Director, Mr. Song Qing (chairman of the
committee), and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix and Mr. Kwong Kwok
Kong.
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There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as rules governing

dealings by Directors in the listed securities of the

Company.

Having made specific enquiry, the Company confirmed that
all members of the Board complied with the Model Code
during the year ended December 31, 2022. As senior
managers, executives and officers who, because of their
offices in the Company, may possess inside information of
the Company, they shall comply with the provision of the
Model Code. To the best knowledge of the Company, no
incident of non-compliance to the Model Code has been
committed by such employees during the vyear
December 31, 2022.

ended

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting to be held on Thursday, June 1,
2023, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, May 29, 2023 to Thursday, June 1,
2023, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify as members
entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting,
investors should lodge all transfers of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates with the Company's
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong
time) on Thursday, May 25, 2023.
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For determining the entitlement to the proposed 2022 Final
Dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Friday, June 9, 2023 to Tuesday, June 13,
2023, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
registered. In order to qualify for the
entitlement to the proposed 2022 Final Dividend, all
transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share

shares will be

certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong
time) on Thursday, June 8, 2023.

The 2022 Final Dividend will be payable in cash to each
Shareholder in HK$ unless an election is made to receive
the same in RMB. Shareholders will be given the option to
elect to receive all (but not part) of the 2022 Final Dividend
in RMB at the average benchmark exchange rate of HK$ to
RMB as published by the People’s Bank of China during the
five business days ending on June 1, 2023 (inclusive), being
the date of the Annual General Meeting. To make such
election, Shareholders should complete the dividend
currency election form, which is expected to be despatched
to Shareholders in late June 2023 as soon as practicable
after the 13, 2023 to
determine Shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed 2022

record date of Tuesday, June

Final Dividend, and return it to the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4: 30 p.m. on Friday, July 7, 2023. Shareholders who are
minded to elect to receive all (but not part) of the 2022
Final Dividend in RMB by cheques should note that (i) they
should ensure that they have an appropriate bank account to
which the RMB cheques for dividend can be presented for
payment; and (ii) there is no assurance that RMB cheques
can be cleared without material handling charges or delay in
Hong Kong or that RMB cheques will be honoured for
payment upon presentation outside Hong Kong. The
cheques are expected to be posted to the relevant
Shareholders by ordinary post on Wednesday, July 19, 2023
at the Shareholders’ own risk.
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If no election is made by a Shareholder or no duly
completed dividend currency election form in respect of that
Shareholder is received by the Company’'s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, by 4: 30 p.m. on Friday, July 7, 2023,
such Shareholder will automatically receive the 2022 Final

Dividend in HK$.

All dividend payments in HK$ will be made in the usual way
on Wednesday, July 19, 2023.
receive the 2022 Final Dividend in HKS$ in the usual way, no
required. Shareholders should seek
professional advice from their own tax advisors regarding

If Shareholders wish to

additional action is

the possible tax implications of the proposed dividend
payment.

The full text of the Corporate Governance Report is set out
on pages 71 to 98 of this annual report.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Based on the information publicly available and to the best
of the Board's knowledge,
Company has always maintained sufficient public float as at
the date of this annual report.

information and belief, the

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Company’s securities.
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EEERE

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Subsequent Event(s)”
under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 26 to 27 of this annual report.

The Company has appointed Messrs. Ernst & Young as the
auditor of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2022.

Ernst & Young will retire as the auditor of the Company
upon expiration of its term of office at the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and will
not be reappointed. With the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, the Board has resolved to recommend the
appointment of KPMG as the new auditor of the Company
following the retirement of Ernst & Young and such
proposed appointment is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in
this annual report form part of this director’s report.

On behalf of the Board
Song Qing
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 28, 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has been committed to maintaining and
improving its standard of corporate governance in order to
enhance the accountability and transparency of the Group,
so as to increase the long-term return of the Shareholders.
The Company confirms that it has complied with all material
code provisions of the CG Code (the version as of
December 31, 2022) during the year ended December 31,

2022.

The Company will review and commit to making necessary
arrangement to comply with all the code provisions under
the CG Code and the rising expectations of Shareholders
and investors.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors complied with the
Model Code during the year ended December 31, 2022.
Senior management, executives and staff who, because of
their offices in the Company, are likely to possess inside
information, have also been requested to comply with the
provision of the Model Code and the Company confirmed
that there was no incident of non-compliance of the Model
Code by such employees during the year ended December
31, 2022.

The Group regards “Strive for Public Health” as its
corporate mission, takes integrity, performance-oriented,
people-oriented and win-win collaboration as our values. We
strive to become a leading medical and health industry
group in China, and a pioneer in the reform of state-owned
medical institutions. The Group promotes a working
atmosphere with sincerity, solidarity, open-mindedness,
proactivity. The Company has formulated

handbook in response to the corporate culture, and timely

its culture

publicised it to all staff (especially to the new recruits).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREBRRE

The Directors are accountable to all Shareholders for their
leadership and supervision over the Group’s operation, and
are committed to achieving the goal of increasing
Shareholders’ value.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised
nine Directors, including four executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and four independent non-executive
Directors. The composition of Board during the year ended
December 31, 2022 and up to the date of this annual report
is as follows:

Mr. Song Qing (Chairman of the Board)

Mr. Yu Hai (Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on February 27, 2023)

Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Shan Baojie (Vice President)

Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer)
(Resigned on February 27, 2023)

Mr. Hu Hui

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony

Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix

Mr. Fu Tingmei (Appointed on February 27, 2023)

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy (Resigned on November 30, 2022)

None of the members of the Board is related to one
another.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 99
to 107 of this annual report. The list of the Directors (by
category) is also disclosed in all of the corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time
in accordance with the Listing Rules.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Board
complied at all times with the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors (representing at least
one-third of the Board), of which at least one Director has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of
the independent non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with the guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) brought a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and judgement to the Board. Through
active participation at Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and
serving on Board committees, all the non-executive
Directors have made various contributions to the effective
development of the Company.

The Board currently has 4 independent non-executive
Directors who have vyears of experience in audit,
investment, finance, law and business management. The
independent non-executive Directors are able to provide
independent and appropriate opinions to the Board so as to
ensure that the Board can obtain independent views and
opinions that it requires when exercising its powers and
making major decisions. The independent non-executive
Directors (as other Directors) are entitled to seek further
information and documentation from the senior management
on the matters to be discussed at Board meetings. They can
also seek assistance from the Company’'s company
secretary and, where necessary, independent advice from
external professional advisers at the Company’s expense.
They shall not vote or be counted in the quorum on any
board resolution approving any contract or arrangement in
which he/her or any of his/her close associates has a
material interest. Such mechanisms are to ensure that a
strong independent element on, and independent views and
input are available to the Board. During the year ended
December 31, 2022, the 4 (3 after the resignation of Ms.
Chiu Kam Hing Kathy) independent non-executive Directors
attended Board meetings regularly and actively participated
in the decision-making process of the Board, and provided
independent views and opinions to the Board when it
performed its duties. In view of the above, and after review,
the Board believes that its mechanism for obtaining
independent opinions has been fully implemented and
continues to be effective.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
to protect Directors from possible legal action against them.
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EXREBRRE

The Board is
functions of corporate governance.
December 31, 2022, the Board has performed the functions
set out in Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, including
reviewing the Company's
governance and ensuring compliance with the CG Code (in
particular, the principles of good corporate governance) and

responsible for the performance of the
For the year ended

implementation of corporate

disclosure requirements in the corporate governance report.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company was Mr. Cheng Libing, and Mr.
Song Qing was the Chairman of the Board. The Company
has complied with Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code
which stipulates that the
Executive should not be performed by the same individual
during the year. On February 27, 2023, Mr. Cheng Libing
resigned and Mr. Yu Hai was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

roles of Chairman and Chief

Under the the Board is
responsible for the approval and supervision of the Group's
general development strategies, the review and approval of
the annual
material investment projects related to the Group’s business
development, the review on the Group's performance and
the supervision of the work of the management, and

leadership of the Chairman,

budget and business plans, the consent of

ensures that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company and Shareholders as a whole, operates effectively
and performs the necessary duties, as well as discusses all
the significant and appropriate issues of the Group’s
business in a timely manner. All the Directors are entitled to
propose the inclusion of any item in the agenda of the
Board meetings for appropriate discussion. The Chairman
has appointed the secretary of the meeting to draft the
Board meetings’ agendas.
executive Directors and the secretary of the Board, the
Chairman will ensure that all the Directors are provided with
sufficient and
required for necessary analysis based on their expertise.

Under the assistance of the

reliable information in a timely manner
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The Chief Executive Officer has delegated sufficient
authority for the operation and management of the Group’s
business to the executive Directors and other senior
in-charge of the daily

including

management members, who are
management of the Group in every aspect,
implementation of the Board's resolutions unanimously, and
be accountable to the Chief Executive Officer for the
operations of various aspects of the Group's business, while
the Chief Executive Officer shall be accountable to the

Board for the Group’s operations as a whole.

The responsibilities of the Board are as follows:

(a)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior

management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

In order to enhance its corporate governance structure, the
Company has formulated the “Rules and Procedures for
Board Meetings”. The "“Rules and Procedures for Board
Meetings"” specifies that the CEO Management Meeting is
composed of executive Directors, Chief Financial Officer,
Deputy President and other senior management, all being
called together by the Chief Executive Officer. As the
approval organization for the Company's daily operational
management, the committee is responsible for organizing
and managing the Company's daily operations and
accountable to the Board.
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TEERRE

Board Meetings

According to Code Provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, regular
Board meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. During the year ended
December 31, 2022, there were only two regular Board
meetings held to review and consider the interim results
and the annual results, respectively, as the Company is not
required to announce its quarterly results under the Listing
Rules. Seven other Board meetings were held during the
year.

The Chairman also held a meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors without presence of other Directors
during the year.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Board held nine

Board meetings. Attendance records of the Directors at the
Board meetings are set out as follows:

Name of Director

EEEEE
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Number of
meetings
attended/

held
hE/

&

28%

Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Song Qing (Chairman of the Board) RBEEE(EFR) 8/9
Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer) EERL(BEEHFE) 99
Mr. Shan Baojie (Vice President) BENLE(F4#EE) 9/9
Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer) PN S (4B E)

(Resigned on February 27, 2023) (R2023%2 527 H B ) 6/9
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Hu Hui L AL 9/9
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEBITES
Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony HEMBEE 9/9
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BBk & 9/9
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix TRELE 8/9
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy iz Rora Lo

(Resigned on November 30, 2022) (R20224F 11 H30H FHE) 8/8
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Notice of regular Board meetings had been served to all
Directors at least 14 days prior to the meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend.

For regular Board and committee meetings, all agendas,
meeting papers, together with all applicable, complete and
the Directors or
committee members at least three days before a meeting is
held. All Directors may propose any business to be included
in the agenda of the Board or committee meetings and

reliable statistics will be sent to all

contact the company secretary to ensure full compliance
of the Board’'s procedures and applicable
regulations.

with all

In general, the senior management members shall attend all
the regular Board meetings and, if necessary, other Board
and committee meetings to advise on the Group's business
development, and accounting, statutory and

regulatory compliance, corporate governance and risk

financial

management matters as well as other significant issues. The
Board may, if appropriate, authorize the Directors to seek
independent and professional advice at the expense of the
Group. Matters discussed and resolved at Board meetings
will be recorded in detail by the Board secretary who shall
prepare and file the minutes or resolutions. Generally, draft
minutes of Board meeting shall be issued to the Directors
their
meeting is held, and the final version will be open for

within reasonable time for comments after such

inspections by the Directors.

The Articles of Association contains provision requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in
the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which

such Directors or their associates have a material interest
and this provision has always been complied with.
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According to the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but no less than one-third) are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any new Director appointed to fill casual vacancy shall hold
the next following general
Company and for any Director appointed as an addition to

office until meeting of the
the Board shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company. The retiring Directors shall
be eligible for re-election.

Any other appointment, resignation, removal or re-
designation of Directors will be timely disclosed to the
Shareholders by announcement and shall include in such
announcement, the reasons given by the Director for his
resignation.

(including the
Independent Non-executive Directors ) was engaged on a

Each of the non-executive Directors

service contract or letter of appointment for a fixed term
and shall be subject to retirement by rotation once every
three years. The specific terms of service of each non-
executive Director are as follows:
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Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. Hu Hui HAE SR 4 From December 30, 2021 20215 12A30H =
to December 29, 2024 2024412 B29H

Independent Non-executive B FHITES

Directors

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony HATE MBS A& From August 7, 2021 to 2021F8H7HZE
December 31, 2023 202312 A31H

Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB B St S A From January 1, 2021 to 20211 HA1HZE
December 31, 2023 2023%F12H31H

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix IRIBLEAE From January 1, 2021 to  2021F1H81HZ

December 31, 2023
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The Company considers increasing diversity at the Board
level as an essential element its strategic
objectives and achieving sustainable and balanced
development for the Group, and also for the compliance
with the provisions in the CG Code on board diversity which
became effective on September 1, 2013, the Board has
adopted a policy concerning diversity of Board members
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) setting out a number of
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
cultural and educational background, communication styles,
interpersonal skills, functional expertise, problem solving

in attaining

skills, professional qualifications, knowledge and industry and
regional experience and other qualities, and all appointments
to the Board will be based on merits and will take into
account of factors based on the Group’s own business
model and specific needs from time to time. The Company
shall strengthen the board diversity as and when appropriate
according to the needs of business development and
corporate governance.

At the end of 2022, the female representation is 12.5% of
the Board and the Company has achieved gender diversity in
respect of the Board. The Board targets to maintain at least
the current level of female representation, with the ultimate
goal of achieving gender parity. In considering the Board's
succession, the Nomination Committee would engage
independent professional search firm(s) to help identify
potential candidates for Directors, as and when appropriate.
The Company will continue to promote gender diversity
recruiting middle to senior employees and
reserve a group of female executives and potential Director
successors for the future. The Board will continue to take
opportunities to increase the proportion of female members
over time as and when suitable candidates are identified.
During 2022, the Nomination Committee
structure, size, and diversity of the Board as well as the
selection criteria for Director candidate(s) and the Board
Diversity Policy, to ensure that the Board's composition

when level

reviewed the

complies with the Listing Rules and reflects an appropriate
mix of skills, experience, and diversity that are relevant to
the Company’s strategy, governance, and business and
contribute to the Board's effectiveness and efficiency.

TEERRE

AARRRAZEEEEONZ LLAERSE
E BB R ERASEEEROBRT
= MEAETR2013F98 1 HEMN D
ERTAEBREETE L LILMEX EFE
ERNEBREESENELTIEMBER ([ES
EZRLBE]) EPHEREZZESENR
ARFHEEESENKEREZENE TE
= BREETRAMER - FE - &k - Xt
R#EES BRI ABRED  BiEZ
R BABBERT  BEER ABRITE
ARMEEHRIAREMES  BERES AT
ERIBNREEHEAREE Wit R AEE
BEEKREARTH ABERSEEHEE
fE e RRRIBERBEERERRGES
AT EMREFENEZLIL

BE02FFE ZUHEEHEFENEH
125%  ARRDEINEFSHEMLRZ T
t-EFeFEELMEKNBABEZLHERTE
BEHKY  YAEEMERHFRERE
F-AEEFR#IITH RELZESEERDS
ZRHEEFRLEXSERBHIDESE
EZANE ARABEBERETSNET
R IR Z T - RARRBEE LS
EABNEBHEERHECIAN BREBEEA
B EEEREBERMIERENLD -
20225 AR - IREBENERZBEEHEZTEN
B AB-KEZl UWRBEESRA
ERNEAMEZTEKREZ TEBRETR
A ARREFTENAKRTE LHRE A
REZEABERAQBNEE - B8 RER
MRS  EREEZTEER  EKEEER
FIRIEESE  SEFSRERILRE
R o
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%

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee has %

BARE

SHIR REZEGCRBUTAFE

4
reviewed the following measurable objectives and the EREZMERNKZEEZHEE
progress towards these objectives:

The Board has at least one Director of a
different gender.

Exgz)A B TAUNNES

Consider the appointment of new Director(s)
from a wide range of candidates (including
backgrounds, skills, experience
perspectives that would complement the
existing Board)

and

and preferably add gender
diversity.

REZALT(BERKESR Bt KREkESY
ERREFETENBRE)TERZERES
WIREARNEBMESTENZ UL RER —EE
FES

To evaluate the composition and structure of
the Board annually , as well as the diversity of
the Board.

BEAZESSEKEEE  UNREFEZ T
IE

=

Establish a pipeline of potential Director
successors which can reach gender diversity.

B — B ER MR Z T BEESEEIA
|

mR

2022, the Board has a
female Director, the goal has been achieved.
B E2022F12A31H - EFg AR LHE
= BRREEEK-

By December 31,

The goal of FY2022 has been achieved, and
the Company will continue to look for diverse
and suitable candidates for recommendation
and appointment as Director(s).

2022F BT FEE ER - WS EREMERZ T -
AEARNEBZTAES -

The goal of FY2022 has been achieved, and
the Board evaluation process includes an
assessment of the Board's diversity helping to
objectively consider the Board composition and
effectiveness.

2022 BEREEK s ZBEEREEES
LRI RS - BREMEBRES AR ER

The goal of FY2022 has been achieved, and
the Board shall seize the opportunity to
increase the proportion of female members
over time when selecting suitable Director
candidates and making
accordingly. The Company shall also continue
to promote gender diversity when recruiting

recommendations

middle and senior staff, and reserve a group of
female executives and potential Director
successors for the future.
022F I RFREEEK ERESHENESRE
AWM B RN SRR ER SRR
Bz K BRI LA - KRR I GHEBEIRE
FEREIRERMEMNZ T  BARKREE 1
TMEEEABREEESFETA -
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In respect of our staff, the Group strictly complies with the
relevant laws and regulations in formulating the internal
policies of the Group and our member medical institutions,
and adheres to the principle of fair and open employment in
order to eliminate all discrimination based on factors such as
gender, age, race, and region, and provides our employees
with a diverse and inclusive working environment with fair
employment and promotion opportunities,
privacy. There are no mitigating factors or circumstances
which make achieving gender diversity across the workforce

respect and

(including senior management)
relevant. As of December 31, 2022, the total number of
employees (including senior management) of the Group is

more challenging or less

9,668, among which the number of female employees is
6,731 (69.62%), and the number of male employees is
2,937 (30.38%), The Company expects that in consideration
of the business development, ratio of all
employees will be maintained at the current level in the

medium term.

the gender

The Group has established a formal
procedure for formulating policies on
Directors and senior management of the Group. Details of
the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year
ended December 31, 2022 are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

and transparent
remuneration of

Details of the remuneration of the senior management of
the Company, by band for the year ended December 31,
2022 are set out below:

4,001 to 5,000
3,001 to 4,000
2,001 to 3,000
Nil to 2,000

4,001 25,000
3,001 24,000
2,001 %£3,000
£ %£2,000

TEERRE

E2BETRER ASERBETHRER
ERCRIERAEBE R TBEERENANIDK
KBEQAT  AFRMERRBIAE—1)
MR- Fie BHR HEZFERMERT
A REBEIRBIENRENEAKE B
BUVREE IR AEZTEANBIZIR
B REXMNELS2EET (BREERER
AB)ERMRZ T b E AkB BT AT
FEZENER - #HE2022912831H * K
SEHBET (RERREREAE)#/A9668
A BEFRLZMEETHAEG,731TA(E
69.62%) BB T#E8| 52937 A (G
30.38%) ' AABENEEEBERTE -
SEETAMMRLLAIEF BABERFTERRD
IR o

AEED AV EERAEBSAEREY
ML ENEBRBRAECEF - SES
HE2022F12A3MBIEFEZHWMFBEH
RAFIRREGEE M EHRER ZHIFE10-
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Share Option Scheme and Share Award
Scheme

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company
has not granted any share option or Award Share to (i)
Connected Persons; (ii) service providers; (iii) related entity
participants; (iv) employee participants with a vesting period
less than 12 months; and (v) participants without
performance targets and/or claw back mechanism under the
Share Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme adopted by
the Company.

General Meetings

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company
held one annual general meeting (“AGM”) and one
extraordinary general meeting ("EGM"). Attendance records
of the Directors at the general meetings are set out as
follows:

Name of the Directors

BRETERRNERBE

B E£2022F12A31MBILFE AR AIBE&
)AL (i) RIS E m)?ﬁs@éiﬁg—%
2HAZE (|V1EE%EE%T“%E¢EHH’JEA 2 1@
A RWTAREREBERSRNES 22
Eﬂ%&ﬁ&ﬂﬁ% AR i SR HE RN AR 1D ©

BRERKRE

B £2022F12A31BIEFE - X AR EIT
—RERBAFARe ((RRBFAE])) K—

RRRFIAE ([RREHKAE]) - EFRH

BRARE sz HELEEHINEAT -

Number of meetings

Executive Directors

Mr. Song Qing (Chairman of the Board)

Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Shan Baojie (Vice President)

Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer)
(Resigned on February 27, 2023)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Hu Hui

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy
(Resigned on November 30, 2022)

attended/convened
SEHE/
BHIRE
AGM EGM
BEBAF BRI
AE g
HITEE
RERE(EFR) 171 11
TERT (EEHEE) A 171
BERNEE (F/4EE) n 1/1
XS o (4 #)
(R2023%2 527 H §HE) A 0N
FHTES
BRIE S n 11
BIkBTES
MR & 17 11
BB LA A 171
TRBEE A 1/1
BEMit
(R2022% 11530 H B 1T) 171 NATEA

The 2023 annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on June 1, 2023. The notice of the annual general
meeting will be sent to the Shareholders at least 21 clear
days before the annual general meeting.

KR BI2023FHBAF KRS 52023F6 A
THRIT - BRERBFRASBEERBREREF
AKEMZP21 BT TIE -
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TEERRSE
Continuous Professional Development for EERFEEXRRE
Directors
On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a BEZINAEZEZEH SESEEE—HT
comprehensive induction package to ensure that he/she has #HZ ABERE  HEREBZ A THRAEESE
a proper understanding of the business and operations of FK&&E  ULENDEHIEAESNET
the Group and is fully aware of the responsibilities and &&E% UR EWRAUNBETHERERLE o
obligations as being a Director as well as the compliance fh#iEBERERE °
practice under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.
All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous ZAEEHBFPRESLKMEFTETELE M)
professional development to develop and refresh their ZENEFNES 2 M Miee - EFEEFHE
knowledge and skills. Directors are kept updated on the IRMETREEERE H UREBETHINEE
statutory and regulatory development and changes in the 2 &#FHEE W UWEHRSETHRE - 852022
business and the market so as to facilitate the discharge of F12A31HILFE >  2EESLXHEFH LT
their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in the RBIEZEEZAE  BELBSE 2RR2  E
courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a BEEEIIRBNFHEABIE#E— SigE
director of a listed company or further enhanced their HEZEHEZRE -
professional development by way of attending training
courses or reading relevant materials for the year ended
December 31, 2022.
A summary of the training received by the Directors for the 1RIEE EFTIRME AL H £20229F128
year ended December 31, 2022 according to the records 31HIFE  EEMEIEINZBMENT ¢
provided by the Directors is as follows:
Attending
seminar or
reading
IMEICHE]S
HEHE
Name of the Directors S BEE R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Song Qing (Chairman of the Board) RBELEE(EFR) \
Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer) TREL (BEHIEE) J
Mr. Shan Baojie (Vice President) BENEE(F/4H) J
Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer) P () {
(Resigned on February 27, 2023) (R2023%F2 527 H §#HF)
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Hu Hui HBEE |
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony HATE B 5 4 |
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB L& \
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix FRELE J
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy HeWzt {
(Resigned on November 30, 2022) (R2022%11H30H g L)
ERBEEERERAT —T__FEHRE 83
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The Board has established the Nomination Committee on
November 4, 2013 which currently consists of one
executive Director, Mr. Song Qing (chairman), and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lee Kar
Chung Felix and Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong. Majority of the
members are independent non-executive Directors.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee are set
out in its terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities
include reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills,
Board, identifying appropriate and qualified individuals to

become Board members and selecting or

knowledge and experience) of the

making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
directorships, assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors,

individuals nominated for

making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination
Committee reviews and assesses the Board composition
and makes recommendations of changes to the composition
of the Board. The Nomination Committee would consider
the benefits of all aspects of diversity set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age,
background,
skills,

ethnicity, cultural and educational

communication styles, functional
expertise, problem solving skills, professional qualifications,

knowledge and industry and regional experience and other

interpersonal

qualities in reviewing and assessing the composition of the
Board and all appointments to the Board will be based on
merits and will take into account of factors based on the
Group’s own business model and specific needs from time
to time.

BEEEN2013F 11 A4BKLIRREEE -
BEE—BRPTESE (REERE(ER)) Kl
ERUFNTES (A TREALEREEH
W) e KEFDKEBBIYIFRITES -

REAZBENACLBRENNERERLE -
HIZETERRNEFERE BRERE
KB (BREKEE  MREALER)  MEAR
REERMALTHEIESEXREERLR
ZEFQEREREERMIBEA - FHEB
MIFHITEENBIUE BREFSREY
BREEENEFM#ETE LERIERA
£ o

REEFSZTCEE  REZEERAN
AEEFESHEAKE  URESSHEMKE
MEFROHERRZS REZESEMN
TEEEGENKER  @ZBEESZ T
EBREBNMEZ T BENES - 818
BARRRIER - Fik - Bk XMERHBEE
ROBBFA ABRRID  BEER BR
REmIT - HEER  MBRITRASLME
RBAREMEE  BES@ 2 MEEEH
DUEREEEAREE Wt RAKE A S XK
BRIz ABFERLEABEAREL -
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The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy on a regular basis (which will include a review on the
effectiveness of the policy), discuss any required changes
with the Board and make recommendation of revision to the
Board Diversity Policy for consideration and approval. The
Nomination Committee has been provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duty. When necessary, the
Nomination Committee will seek independent professional
advice, at the Company’'s expense, to perform its
responsibilities.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and the committees and the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors,
considering the qualifications of the retiring Directors
standing for re-election at the annual general meeting and

making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of Directors. The particulars of the attendance of the
Nomination Committee are set forth as follows:

EEERRSE

REZBENEMRNEFTEZTIBR (B
TEERSZBRORY)  BEESHH
EARFENESRRETEETE L TIEERR
MEFSREES  AHEENIE - BF
ZEECRREHENERUBITERE - 10
BRE RAZEBERSKBUEXREAMN
JEITERTS - BRBAREAE -

HZE2022F12A3MBLFE RELEQ
BOT2REBURTESTERZTES IR
B RBERERKEURBYIERITESZ
B ERRAEEMREAFAGEE
BEACEARTEZEETSREEST -REZE
BEHEHBEHINOT

Number of
meetings
attended/
convened

eHHE/

Name of the members of the Nomination Committee REZBESNEHS BFRRE

Chairman: i

Mr. Song Qing RBEE 2/2

Members: RE :

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix FREEE 2/2

Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB A 2/2
EHBEERARATE T _FERE
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The Board has established the Remuneration Committee on
November 4, 2013 which currently consists of three
independent non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr.
Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony. All of the members are independent
non-executive Directors.

The members of Remuneration Committee during the year
under review and up to the date of this annual report are:

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony (Appointed as the chairman
of the committee on November 30, 2022)
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix
Mr. Fu Tingmei
(Appointed as a member on February 27, 2023)
Ms. Ren Yuan
(Resigned as a member on November 30, 2022)
Mr. Hu Hui (Appointed as a member on November 30, 2022
and resigned as a member on February 27, 2023)
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy
(Resigned as the chairman of the committee
on November 30, 2022)

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
set out in its terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities
include reviewing and formulating policies in respect of
remuneration structure for all Directors and senior
management (including the remuneration packages (inclusive
rights and compensation (if applicable)) of

individual executive Directors and senior management) and

of pension

making recommendations to the Board for its consideration,
reviewing and evaluating the performance of individual
executive Directors, approving the terms of executive
Directors’ service contracts, and reviewing and approving
matters in relation to Share Option Scheme or Share Award
Scheme.

EEE@MN2013F 1M A4BRIFHEE S -
BEE—ZBYINITES  HAT/BEE
ETFWEESTFE - 2K E BB IEHTT
=

CEFARBERNFHREN FHEZESH
BT

M B & (R2022F 11 H30HEZ (T4
ZESFE)

TRIALE

BEELEE
(R2023F2H27HEZ(EARZEE)

e+
(R2022F 11 A30HEFZE)

HRBB S A (2022 11 H30HEZ T AZS
R ER2023%F2 727 HEHTZE S RF)

HE i+
(R2022F 11 A30H B EZESEL/E
B)

FHZEenAc KB N ERERE -
HIZEIERERAMVNIEAREBESTN
EREEABTHRABORR YRAEES
ROEBZZMEERETREEMNNTE
EhEREEBABNFMGB(ZERKE
ZHNBEESRE(WE))  ad RFEE
AMATEENRE  RERTEFTRBELH
EVIERSR - A K R R Ht /B A B A e R 813K
Petn BB ETEIMEE ©
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During the year ended December 31, 2022, the # ZE2022F12A31BItFE FWEES
Remuneration Committee held one meeting to review the RITT1A €% Uil 2BEELRSRE
remuneration policy for all Directors and senior I ABMFMEE T EHRTEEFHREL
management, assess the performance of executive BRIZTEENRBEAR - FMHEES
Directors, and review and approve service contracts of JEFEIBE ST ¢

newly appointed Directors. The particulars of the attendance

of the Remuneration Committee are set forth as follows:

Number of
meetings
attended/
convened

2EHE/

Name of the members of the Remuneration Committee % ( BRRKE
Chairman: i
Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony (Appointed on B MBSt 4 (R2022F 11 A0 HEZ ()

November 30, 2022) N/ATE A
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy HEWrzt

(Resigned on November 30, 2022) (2022411 5308 B 1) 171
Members: KB
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix FRESE 171
Mr. Fu Tingmei BEEEAE

(Appointed on February 27, 2023) (R2023%2 H27 HEZ(F) N/ATE A
Mr. Hu Hui (Appointed on November 30, 2022 and IR (R2022F 11 A30 A EZ (L K 1%

resigned on February 27, 2023) R2023%F2 /27 A &) N/ATiE A
Ms. Ren Yuan EEZL

(Resigned on November 30, 2022) (R2022% 11 5308 B 1) 171

Audit Committee EREES

On November 4, 2013, the Board has established the Audit EZFE€R2013F11 A48T EREZES -
Committee currently consists of one non-executive Director, IRBE—ZIFMITEE (FABLLE) MMEZ B
Mr. Hu Hui and two independent non-executive Directors, M IFH7TZ%E (Bl : B4 (XF) LB
namely, Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong (chairman); and Mr. Fu $EE&LE) - KD KERE BB IERNTE
Tingmei. Majority of the members are independent non- = o

executive Directors.
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The members of Audit Committee during the year under
review and up to the date of this report are:

Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong
(chairman of the committee)

Mr. Hu Hui

Mr. Fu Tingmei
(Appointed as a member on February 27, 2023)

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix (Appointed as a member on
November 30, 2022 and resigned as a member on
February 27, 2023)

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy
(Resigned as a member on November 30, 2022)

The Board considered that the members of the Audit
Committee possess sufficient professional knowledge and
experience of accounting and financial management for the
performance of their responsibilities.

The roles and functions of the Audit Committee are set out
in its terms of reference. In view of the amendments to the
CG Code effective for the accounting period beginning on
January 1, 2016, the Group adopted a revised terms of
reference of the Audit Committee on January 18, 2016 in
order to comply with certain changes relating to the risk
management and internal control section of the CG Code.
Its primary responsibilities include serving as a focal point
for communication among other Directors, the external
auditor and the internal auditor (where an internal audit
function exists) as regards their duties relating to financial
and other reporting, risk management and internal controls,
external and internal audits and such other financial and
accounting matters as the Board determines from time to
time, assisting the Board in providing an independent review
on the effectiveness of the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
overseeing the audit procedure, reviewing the Group's
financial and accounting policies and practices and
performing other duties and responsibilities as designated by

the Board.

CEFARBERNFREY FRZEA
AT

)
=

BOE S o £
(ZEE8E/F)

HAYE S A4

BEXEXE
(R2023F2H27ABZTAREE)

ERBEE(R2022F11HA30H EZ (T 4
ZER#ER2023F2H27HF T Z B
B %)

HeEmzt
(R2022F 11 A30H BT Z SBF%)

ExeRn BRREeNBABRS R
MUHERERME L& EABTTRS
MEBEE -

BEZZEENBERBESN EBESE -
201651 A1 BT AR AR B E
ERSTANERTME - A&EBEE2X20165F1AH
1ISERMEIETTBERZESHESHE - &
BOEXERTAEHRKRER RN —
BMETES HFXrZEIBEEAEME
= SNEEAZ ERD R R P AT AN (A0SR A BE
e cEEBEEME MBS AR
ERRAEHEE IR B RETS
THETHNZEHMY BN EES A
WEBENETZEBRBR  RAEEUBRSE
B E - B E R A ED B 12 I Y X Ak 1% B
EETCRURN  EEERRER  BHASE
BB RestBERERARBITEEEIE
ERHAMBEMET -
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During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Audit
Committee held four meetings to discharge its
responsibilities and review the Group’s annual and interim
results, continuing connected transactions, reporting and
compliance procedures, reports from the management on
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control function and
procedures and also the re-appointment of the external
auditor. The particulars of the attendance of the Audit
Committee are set forth as follows:

EEERRSE

HE2022F12A3BLEFE  EZEEE
BT TIREZABTEBREYFNAEE
FERPHESE FEHUERS #HERE
HRiEF BEEFHAASERERERE KA
BEPEHIE  NEBRNEP TR RIE T 2K
Mz BmEARBEINEZEM - FZEEE
HEFBEHIINAT

Number of
meetings
attended/
convened

2EHE/

Name of the members of the Audit Committee = BRRKE
Chairman: TE:
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB o 4/4
Members: RE :
Mr. Hu Hui B EE 3/4
Mr. Fu Tingmei BEXLE

(Appointed on February 27, 2023) (R2023%2H27 HEZ(F) N/ATE A
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix (Appointed on ERBIAE (R2022F11 A0 A EZ (T

November 30, 2022 and resigned on RER2023F2 /27 AFT)

February 27, 2023) N/A i
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy Wt (R20224 11 430 A FHF)

(Resigned on November 30, 2022) 4/4

Appointment and Remuneration of
External Auditor

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the total fee
paid/payable to the external auditors of the Group in respect
of audit services is RMB5.53 million, including the annual
audit service fee payable to Ernst & Young amounted to
RMB4.93 million. The total fee paid/payable to the external
auditors of the Group in respect of non-audit services (in
respect of review of interim period financial statements) is
RMBO0.6 million.

SR ERENM S

H E2022F12A3MBEFE  RBEZRB
BXf A AEBINE X EEN B R
BARMBEIE T HR B IEEN K5
MEBANFEEZRBEEARKL93E
TC e BT AR B IMNEAZ AT 5 IE R
R (AR BEEE IR EEZ2BRA
EAEARBGOE T
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The Audit
recommendations to the Board as to the appointment, re-
appointment and Such
appointment, re-appointment and removal are subject to the

Committee is responsible for making

removal of the external auditor.
approval by the Board and the general meetings of the

Company by the Shareholders.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Group
about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
in the
independent auditor’s report from pages 109 to 116 of this
annual report.

financial statements of the Group is set out

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2022 which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group as well as the results and
cash flow during that year.
The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group ensures statutory requirements are
met and applies appropriate accounting policies that are
consistently adopted and makes judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper
accounting records are kept so that the Group could prepare
statutory
requirements and the Group’s accounting policies. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities within the
Group.

financial statements in accordance with

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

SRAMIIMNERBEINER T B
AEFSFHERBRZ  %FZT -
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The Board would review the Group's risk management and
internal control systems at least once a year. The Board
responsible for
internal

confirms that it is the Group's risk

management and control systems and is
responsible for
systems. These systems are designed to manage rather

than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the Group's

reviewing the effectiveness of these

business objectives and the Board can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. During the year ended December 31,
2022, the Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as
as the management report and the audit
findings, has performed an annual review on the adequacy

well internal
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems in different aspects of the Group
such as financial, operation, compliance and risk
management, and has also assessed the accounting and
financial reporting functions and the environmental, social &
corporate governance function of the Group, estimated the
resources and budgets for
appraised the staff members’ qualifications and experience.

In respect of continuing connected transactions, the Group

training programmes and

has implemented a series of general management policies
controlled by multiple departments to improve corporate
governance structure and monitor the implementation of
internal control policies, including financial control system,
legal
compliance management system,

anti-fraud and monitoring system, operations and
risk management and

assessment policies and internal audit rules.

The Company has established a whistleblowing policy and
system for employees and those who deal with the issuer
(e.g. customers and suppliers) to
confidence and anonymity, with the audit committee (or any

raise concerns, in

designated committee comprising a majority of independent
non-executive directors) about possible improprieties in any
matter related to the issuer. The Company has also
established relevant policy that promote and support anti-

corruption laws and regulations.

The Board considers that the abovementioned systems
(including the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group) are effective and adequate.
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The internal audit department is responsible for conducting
comprehensive audits of each department, subsidiary and
member of the Group to facilitate the management’s control
on the assets of the Group. In addition, it offers consulting
services in respect of internal control to each department of
the Group to assist them in optimizing and enhancing the
risk management and internal control systems and the
operating processes. As authorized by the management, the
audit department conducts an investigation on
internal corruption. For the year ended December 31, 2022,

internal
the internal audit department did not discover any
circumstances involving fraud, non-compliance or violation
against laws, regulations and rules or any material incidents
due to lack of internal control.

The Board considers that the current risk management and
internal control systems cover the existing businesses of the
Group, and will continue to be optimized in line with the
business development of the Group.

In particular, the Board will devote efforts to complying with
the Listing Rules, ensuring compliance with the relevant
laws and regulation and safeguarding the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guide to the Directors, officers, senior
management and employees in
confidential information, monitoring information disclosure
and responding to enquiries.

relevant handling

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that

unauthorized access and use of inside information are

strictly prohibited.

The Board assesses the likely impact of any unexpected
significant event that may impact the price of the Shares or
their trading volume and decides whether the relevant
information is considered as inside information and needs to
be disclosed as soon as practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09
and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and the Inside Information
Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO. Executive Directors
and the company secretary are also responsible for
approving certain announcements and/or circulars to be
issued by the Company under powers delegated by the

Board from time to time.
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Mr. So Yiu Fung has been engaged by the Company as the
company secretary and an authorized representative with
effect from July 20, 2018.

The primary contact person of the Company with Mr. So is
Ms. Ren Yuan, an executive Director and the Chief Financial
Officer.

Mr. So currently serves as the group deputy company
secretary of CR Corporate Affairs Limited. He has been
appointed as the company secretary and the authorised
representative of the Company since July 2018, the
company secretary and authorized representative of China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1313)
since May 2022, and as the company secretary of China
Resources Land Limited (Stock Code: 1109) and China
Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited (Stock Code:
1209) since January 2023. Prior to that, Mr. So served as
the company secretary and the authorised representative of
TUS International Limited (currently known as Titan Invo
Technology Limited, Stock Code: 872), the deputy finance
director of the capital markets team of China Resources

Land Limited (Stock Code: 1109), the senior company
secretarial officer of the legal department of China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, and had also

worked for corporate finance advisory firms. He holds a
bachelor’'s degree in civil engineering from The University of
Hong Kong, and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. So has over 15 years of
experience in corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions,
company secretary and accounting.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, Mr. So has
complied with the requirement of taking no less than 15
hours of the relevant professional training under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company has
not made any changes to its Memorandum and Articles of
Association.
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To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at general meetings, including the re-election of individual
retiring Directors. Except where the chairman, in good faith,
decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a
show of hands, all
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules. Poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange after each general

resolutions tabled at the general

meeting.

The annual general meeting and other general meetings of
the Company are primary forums for
between the Company and its Shareholders. The Company
shall provide Shareholders with relevant information on the
resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely
manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
information provided shall be reasonably necessary to enable
Shareholders to make an informed decision on the proposed
resolution(s).

communication

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders to
propose new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders
who wish to propose a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with
the procedures set out in the paragraph below.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one
or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such

right of voting at general

requisition.
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If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a

proceed to convene such meeting, the

result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The Board believes that effective communication with
investors is essential for establishing investors’ confidence
and attracting new investors. The Company also recognizes
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information which enables investors to make the
best investment decision.

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the
Shareholders in compliance with the Listing Rules. Updated
and key information of the Company is also available on the
Company'’s website at www.crmedical.hk. The Company also
replied the enquiries from Shareholders timely, if any. The
general meetings of the Company provide an important
channel for communications between the Board and the
Shareholders. The Chairman, as well as the chairmen of the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee or, in their absence, other members of the
respective committee and where appropriate, the chairman
of the independent Board Committee, will be available to
answer questions at the general meetings.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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The Board has
effectiveness of the arrangements on communication with
the Shareholders in 2022 and "“Shareholder
Communication Policy of China Resources Medical Holdings

reviewed the implementation and

issued the

Limited"”, and confirmed that it has included channels for the
Shareholders to communicate their views on various matters
affecting the Company and that the Company has taken
appropriate and sufficient steps to solicit and understand the
views of the Shareholders and stakeholders, and the Board
is satisfied with the implementation and effectiveness of
such policy.
communication policy is set out in the following paragraphs.

The summary of the shareholders

The above-mentioned policy aims to maintain continuous,
timely and effective communication with Shareholders
(including potential investors and analysts where
appropriate) to ensure that these stakeholders can obtain
timely, consistent and comprehensive information about the
Company when appropriate. The applicable channels include
(1) disclosure through the Company’s financial report (i.e.,
report and report); (2)
circulars and other regulatory disclosure
submitted to the Stock Exchange in accordance with the
continuous disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules,
which will also be immediately published on the website of
the Stock Exchange; (3) the general
Company; and (4) communication activities with
investment markets, including roadshows, industry forums,

annual interim announcements,

information

meeting of the
other

etc.

The Company also believes that general meeting is an
important opportunity for constructive communication
between the Board. The Company can issue a written
request to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company in accordance with the content and requisite
conditions stipulated under Article 58 of the Articles of
Association so as to request the Board to convene a
general
chairmen of the committees under the Board, and in their
absence, other members of the relevant committees or their

meeting. The Chairman of the Board and the

designated representatives shall attend the meeting and
the Shareholders. The Company
encourages its Shareholders to actively participate in general

communicate with

meetings.
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The Company also organizes various activities from time to
time, including press conferences and one-on-one meetings
for investors,
promotion activities and industry forums, etc., to facilitate
communication with Shareholders and
Directors and employees of the Company must abide by the

roadshows, media interviews, investor

investors. The

disclosure responsibilities and requirements set out in the
Company's inside information policy when they have contact
or dialogue with investors, the media or other external
stakeholders.

If any Shareholder of the Company have any questions
about his/her his/her he/she
should submit to the Company’s share registrar (the contact

shareholding under name,
information of which is set out as below). Shareholders,
investors and other stakeholders can raise comments or
inquiries or to request the company’s public information at
any time via e-mail at ir@crmedical.hk or by post to the
registered address of the Company (in the case of a
Shareholder, through the share registrar of the Company).

The Company understands the importance of protecting the
privacy of Shareholders. Unless otherwise stipulated by
laws, the Company shall not disclose information of any
Shareholder without consent of any such Shareholder.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as

mentioned above to the following:

Address:  14/F, Kunlun Center Office Building
No. 9, Fuyi Street
Fengtai District
Beijing, the People’s Republic of China
Email: ir@crmedical.hk
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Contact Information of the Company’s
Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Address:  Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai
HKSAR

Tel: (852) 2862 8688
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Mr. Song Qing, aged 58, joined the Group in August 2018
as an executive Director and the vice Chairman, and was
re-designated as the Chairman in April 2021
appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee in
December 2021. Mr. Song holds a bachelor's degree in
Chinese medicine from Anhui University of Traditional
Chinese Medicine in Hefei, the PRC, and obtained his chief
pharmacist title from the general logistics department of the
People’'s Liberation Army in April 1999. Mr. Song has
extensive experiences in corporate management, and has
over 30 years of experience and sophisticated background
in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Song is currently the
chairman of CR Healthcare, which is the controlling
shareholder of the Company, and also takes the role as the
Company’s Chairman
segment of China Resources. The Company believes that
with Mr. Song's extensive experience
management and mergers and acquisitions, and his deep
understanding of the healthcare industry, he will lead the
Group to promote business development, actively participate
reform of state-owned enterprises hospitals,
accelerate the scale expansion plan of the Company, further
leverage advantages of China Resources Group and further
synergize the collaboration between the Company and CR
Healthcare. Mr. Song was the director of China Resources
Pharmaceutical Group Limited (which is listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange; stock code: 3320) from May
2016 to August 2018, and also its president from June
2017 to August 2018. Mr. Song was the chairman of China
Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (which
is listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange; stock code: 000999)
and he is currently the chairman of DIRUlI Medical
Technology Co., Ltd. (which is listed on ChiNext of
Shenzhen Stock Exchange; stock code: 300396). He also
served as an inspection pharmacist of quality inspection
department, a pharmacist in charge and the director of
production department, the director of the enterprise
management department and an assistant to president of
Shenzhen South Pharmaceutical Factory. Mr. Song served as
an assistant general manager, the director of technology
center, the director of medical & pharmaceutical department
of Sanjiu Enterprise.

and then

in order to lead the healthcare

in corporate

in the
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Mr. Yu Hai, aged 55, joined the Group in February 2023 as
an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer. He is
currently the vice chairman and general manager of CR
Healthcare, and served as the senior vice general manager
of CR Healthcare from January 2020 to February 2023 and
as the chairman of Liaoning Healthcare Industry Group Co.,
Ltd. from July 2018 to January 2020. Mr. Yu worked in
Benxi Municipal Government, Liaoning Province from July
2008 to July 2018, and served as the deputy mayor of
Benxi City etc. Prior to that, Mr. Yu held various positions at
government departments including the deputy director of the
Social Development Division of the Department of Science
& Technology of Liaoning Province, the deputy director of
the High-tech Development and Industrialization Division of
the Department of Science & Technology of Liaoning
Province, the deputy director of the Bureau of Science and
Technology of Nagchu District, the Tibet Autonomous
Region, and the principal officer of the Industrial and Social
Development Division, the Scientific and Technological
Commission of Liaoning Province etc. Mr. Yu holds a doctor
of science degree in pharmaceutical affairs management
from the School of Pharmacy, Shenyang Pharmaceutical
University.

Ms. Ren Yuan, aged 49, joined the Group in October 2017
as an executive Director and Chief Financial Officer, and was
appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee
from October 2019 to November 2022. Ms. Ren is currently
also taking the office as a director of a number of the
subsidiaries of CR Healthcare, the Company’s controlling
shareholder. Ms. Ren worked as the deputy manager of the
finance department of China Resources Microelectronics
(Holdings) Limited from June 2002 to December 2006.
From February 2004 to February 2010, Ms. Ren served as
the finance director of Wuxi CR Micro-Assembly Tech., Ltd.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms.
consultancy general director and deputy general director of
the information management department of China
Resources (Holdings) Co., Ltd. since March 2010. Ms. Ren
obtained her

Ren worked as the

master's degree in accounting from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong 2007.
Ms. Ren obtained the qualifications of China Certified Public

Accountant and China Certified Public Valuer in December

in December

1998 and September 1999, respectively.
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Mr. Shan Baojie, aged 51, joined the Group in August 2021
as a non-executive Director and was re-designated as an
executive Director in December 2021, and he is also the
vice president of the Company. Mr. Shan obtained a master
degree in Accounting from Renmin University in Beijing in
June 2002 and a bachelor degree in Chemistry from Wuhan
University in Wuhan in July 1992. Mr. Shan is also currently
the vice general manager of CR Healthcare, the Company’s
controlling shareholder, and is also taking the office as a
director of a number of its subsidiaries. Prior to joining CR
Healthcare, Mr. Shan was with the Group from 2011 to
2016 as the executive general manager and then the vice
general manager, and he was also an executive Director of
the Company from February 2016 to November 2016. He
had served in a variety of roles at the State Food and Drug
Administration from 1998 to 2011, and also completed a
training program at the World Health Organization in 2007,
where he gained experience in the U.S. pharmaceutical
supervision and management system. From July 1992 to
July 1998, Mr. Shan worked in the general manager's office
of the Northeast Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd.

EERSREEAE

BEARKE 5158 - R2021F8A IMARE
EWERTAIERITES - 8HR2021F12 7
RENTESZ BRI AARRZEBE -
BAEAER2002F6 ARIERBFABEARKE
EEestELTEM M9RF7ARREN
REAXSBEBBELEN - BEHREFFIN
EAEARRRIERR R EBRE B85
BUARERRETEZRMNBRARMNESR
T o AN AZEBERERAT - BEALN20114F
F2016F A MAREB W FEEAREB T
MR B RS HINR2016F 28 &
2016F 11 AHIREEARRINITES - B
EBR1998F E201 1 FHEBRE MEREE
EIRERBETZEBA - WHR2007F 2R H
REAEABNEIETE - BESEBEERZEY
EENEERANLER - B1992F7A %
1998 7 A M - B AN R R EEE N
BRI AR -

EHERZERERAT

—E-FERE

101



102

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERAREEAR

Mr. Hu Hui, aged 53, joined the Group in December 2021
as a non-executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee. Mr. Hu obtained a master's degree in
international economic law from the School of Management
of Dalian Maritime University in June 1996; he graduated
with a bachelor’'s degree in the major of ocean-going vessel
manoeuvring from the Maritime Department of Dalian
Maritime University in July 1989. Mr. Hu currently serves as
the general manager of the Legal and Compliance
Department (and Assets Management Department) of CR
Healthcare (the controlling shareholder of the Company). He
was previously the Senior Director of the Device Division of
CR Healthcare (then named China Resources Medical Group
Co., Ltd.) from November 2011 to November 2014, the
General Manager of the Legal Department of CR Healthcare
from November 2014 to November 2019, and the head of
the Comprehensive Management Department of CR
Healthcare from November 2019 to December 2020. Prior to
this, Mr. Hu served as a senior manager of China
Resources Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. from January
2008 to October 2011, and a senior manager of the
Strategic & Management Department of China Resources
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. from June 2007 to December 2007. He
worked at China Resources Investment Development Co.,
Ltd. from March 2001 to May 2007, and at China Resources
Company Limited from July 1996 to February 2001.

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony, aged 68, joined the Group in
August 2018 as an independent non-executive Director and
the Chairman, and then resigned as the Chairman in April
2021. Mr. Wu was appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee in November 2022. Mr. Wu is a
leader in the healthcare industry and has extensive
management experience in medical system. Mr. Wu joined
the board of the Hong Kong Hospital Authority in 1999 and
was formerly its chairman from 2004 to 2013. He has so far
been the longest-serving chairman of the Hospital Authority.
He has led the team of the Hospital Authority to manage all
public hospitals and public clinics in Hong Kong and
implemented the public health policy of the Hong Kong
Government. He has also actively promoted a number of
public and private medical co-operation projects during his
tenure. Mr. Wu is currently the principal advisor to the State
Administration of Traditional Chinese Medicine of the PRC, a
member of the Chinese Medicine Reform and Development
Advisory Committee. He was a member of the State
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Council’'s Medical Reform Leadership Advisory Committee
and an advisor to the Public Policy Advisory Committee of
the National Health and Family Planning Commission. Other
important public positions that Mr. Wu has served include a
member of the 12th and 13th Standing Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference National
Committee, and a member of the Chief Executive’'s Council
of Advisers on Innovation and Strategic Development and
the Task Force on Land Supply of Hong Kong, and has been
awarded JP and GBS by the government of Hong Kong.
Mr. Wu also served as the chairman of the Chamber
Council of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce
from 2010 to 2012, and is currently a member of its
consultation committee. Mr. Wu was a partner of Ernst &
Young (“EY") from 1985 to 2015, and served as chairman of
the EY's Far East Region from 2000 to 2005. He is currently
the chief advisor to MUFG Bank, Ltd., the chairman of The
China Oxford Scholarship Fund, an honorary professor of the
Faculty of Medicine of the Chinese University of Hong Kong
and the Peking Union Medical College Hospital, and an
honorary fellow of the Hong Kong College of Community
Medicine. Mr. Wu also has directorships in certain listed
companies of the main board of the Stock Exchange: he is
an independent non-executive director of Sing Tao News
Corporation Limited (stock code: 1105), Power Assets
Holdings Limited (stock code: 006), China Taiping Insurance
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 966), Cstone
Pharmaceuticals (stock code: 2616), Venus Mecttech
(Hangzhou) Inc. (stock code: 2500) and Ocumension
Therapeutics (stock code: 1477), and is also the chairman
and non-executive director of CLARITY MEDICAL GROUP
HOLDING LIMITED (stock code: 1406). He was an executive
director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited (stock code:
444) and an independent non-executive director of
Guangdong Investment Limited (stock code: 270). He was
also an independent non-executive director of Agricultural
Bank of China Limited (stock code: 1288) from 2009 to
2015. He was also a director of the Fidelity Funds from
2011 to 2014. Mr. Wu is a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and the
honorary chairman of the Institute of Certified Management
Accountants (Australia) Hong Kong Branch.
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Notwithstanding Mr. Wu's engagement as an independent
non-executive director of eight listed companies (including
the Company) and an non-executive director of one listed
company, Mr. Wu confirmed that he would devote sufficient
time to act as an independent non-executive Director based
on the following:

° Mr. Wu is neither a full-time member of the
abovementioned companies nor involved in the
day-to-day operations or management of such
companies. As such, he has no executive and
management responsibility therein;

° he is not a chief executive officer or full-time executive
director of any listed company;

o with his background and experience, Mr. Wu is fully
aware of the responsibilities and expected time
involvement for an independent non-executive director.
He has sufficient understanding of his role as
independent director in different listed companies and
of estimating the time required for attending to the
affairs of each listed company. He has not found
difficulties in devoting to and managing his time with
numerous companies and he is confident that with his
experience in being responsible for several roles, he
will be able to discharge his duties to the Company;
and

o Mr. Wu's role in the Group is non-executive in nature
and he will not be involved in the daily management of
the Group's business, thus his engagement as an
independent non-executive Director will not require his
full-time participation.

Based on the foregoing, the Directors are of the view that
the various positions currently held by Mr. Wu will not result
in Mr. Wu not having sufficient time to act as an
independent non-executive Director or not properly
discharging his fiduciary duties as a Director.
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Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong, aged 75, joined the Group in
September 2013 as an independent non-executive Director
and also the chairman of the Audit Committee and has been
appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee on
March 23, 2018. He was the chief executive officer of Pok
Oi Hospital, a well-known non-profit hospital in Hong Kong.
As the chief executive officer, Mr. Kwong provided
corporate governance and management support to the board
of directors for development, management and supervision
of the units under Pok Oi Hospital for the past 10 years. He
joined Pok Oi Hospital as an internal audit manager in 2003.
Mr. Kwong is a director of Yuen Long District Healthy City
Association Company Limited, a non-profit organization
supporting the government to promote public healthcare
messages to people in the district. Before joining Pok Oi
Hospital, Mr. Kwong served as the principal auditor of the
Audit Commission of the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. Mr. Kwong served in the
Audit Commission of the Government of Hong Kong since
1980. Mr. Kwong has been a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 1982.

Nevertheless Mr. Kwong has served as an independent
The Company
considers that Mr. Kwong has a thorough understanding of

non-executive Director for nine vyears.

the Company’s business and operations. He has been
providing objective opinions and giving independent guidance
to the Company as an independent non-executive Director in
the past. He has been taking the responsibilities of his role
appropriately, and has long been the chairman of the Audit
Committee. Mr. Kwong's long-term service has not affected
his independent judgment, and he has the attitude, integrity
and experience required to continue to perform the role as
an independent non-executive Director. It is in the best
interests of the Company and Shareholders as a whole that
Mr. Kwong continues to act as an independent non-
executive Director.

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix, aged 41, joined the Group in
August 2015 as an independent non-executive Director and
also a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.
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He is currently a senior vice president of Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited (“CTFE") with responsibilities in making
investments in the healthcare sector in Asia and globally and
a director of Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of CTFE. Mr. Lee is an executive director
of UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited (stock code: 722; CTFE
and the
Company also indirectly owns 11.58% of this company as at
the date of this annual report). He is also an non-executive
director of ClouDr Group Limited (which is listed on the

is a substantial shareholder of this company,

main board of the Stock Exchange in July 2022 (stock code:
9955)) independent non-executive director of
Asymchem Laboratories (Tianjin) Company Limited (which is

and an

listed on both the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 6821) and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
002821)). He has over 15 years of experience in law and
finance. He was an associate with the law firm Freshfields
Bruckhaus Deringer before he left in February 2008 to join
UBS AG, Hong Kong branch as an analyst in the investment
banking department until January 2009. He then joined the
investment banking department of Deutsche Bank AG, Hong
Kong branch and last held the position of director in the
Corporate Advisory Group, where he worked from January
2009 to August 2014.

Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor of Laws from the London

School of Economics and Political Sciences and a
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University of
Hong Kong in July 2003 and June 2004, respectively. He is
a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since September
2007 and a solicitor (non-practising) in the Senior Courts of
England and Wales since February 2013. Mr. Lee is also a
Vice Chairman of the China Committee, the Hong Kong

General Chamber of Commerce.
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Mr. Fu Tingmei, aged 56, joined the Group in February
2023 as an independent non-executive Director and also a
member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. He is currently serves as an independent non-
executive director of the following companies which are
listed on the Stock Exchange: China Resources
Pharmaceutical Group Limited (stock code: 3320), Guotai
Junan International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1788) and
COFCO Joycome Foods Limited (stock code: 1610). Mr. Fu
was an independent non-executive director of Beijing
Enterprises Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0392) from July 2008 to June 2017,
an independent non-executive director of CPMC Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 0906) from June 2008 to July 2019 and an
independent non-executive director of Postal Savings Bank
of China Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1658) from May 2016 to March 2023. Mr. Fu
has over 30 years of experience in investment, finance, law
and business management. Mr. Fu holds a master’s degree
in law and a Ph.D. degree in law from London University,
the United Kingdom.

Mr. Wu Xinchun, aged 52, is the vice president of the
Company. Mr. Wu was appointed as the vice president of
the Company in December 2018. From September 2016 to
November 2018, Mr. Wu served as the director and
chairman of China Resources Wugang Medical Management
Company Limited. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wu
was the director of technology management department and
technology innovation department of Wugang Group, steel
smelting factory’s deputy general manager and the general
manager of innovation and innovation department, general
manager of Wugang Modern City Services Group*, chairman
of Wugang CR Gas*, general manager of Wuhan Yangtze
River Water*, assistant to general manager of China Baowu
Wugang Group* from September 2001 to November 2018.
He also served as deputy secretary general of China Iron
and Steel Industry Association. He was the independent
director of Kingray New Materials Science & Technology
Co., Ltd. (a company listed in the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 600390). Mr. Wu was granted the title of senior
engineer at a professor level from Titles Evaluation
Committee of Hubei Province and obtained his doctor’s
degree from Wuhan University of Technology in December
2009 and June 2012, respectively.
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Mr. Liu Ju, aged 50, is currently the vice president of the
Company. He is also the deputy general manager of CR
Healthcare, the chairman of China Resources Healthcare
(Jiangxi) Co., Ltd.,
Runchuan Healthcare Management Co.,

and the chairman of Guangzhou
Ltd. Mr. Liu
previously served as the general manager of the Finance
Department of CR Healthcare, the vice president of the
Sanjiu Brain Hospital, etc. He was the vice president of the
professional committee of primary medical education of the
China Medicine Education Association, the researcher of the
Guangdong Institute of Public Health and Economics, the
vice president of Guangdong Medical Education Association,
Guangdong Medicine Price Expert and certain other national/
provincial academic positions, and director of China
Resources Wandong Medical Equipment Co., Ltd. (currently
known as Beijing Wandong Medical Technology Co., Ltd.,
which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, Stock code
600055.SH). Mr. Liu holds a master degree in Health
Administration from Flinders University in Australia, and is a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountant and a Chinese Senior Accountant.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

e
EY:

To the shareholders of China Resources Medical
Holdings Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 117 to 287, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB")
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

and have been

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"),
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

and we have fulfilled our other ethical
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of

consolidated financial

the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

responsibilities described

consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

HRETEIR

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BB 2 8 77 14

Goodwill as at 31 December 2022 was

RMB2,339,498,000.
1K2022% 12 A31 B E & AR 2,339,498,0007T °

The impairment tests performed by management
regarding the cash-generating units (“CGUs") to
which goodwill was allocated involved significant
judgement for the determination of the recoverable
amounts of the CGUs. During the year, an
impairment of RMB108,324,000 was made against
the Group’s goodwill.
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AR %108,324,0007T °

This is a key audit matter due to the magnitude,
complexity, and management’s estimates involved
in the impairment testing. The accounting policies
and related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3
and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
ERNRERF S RHEE  EREENERE AT
M ERRESSTE S RERIEERBHNGS
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEBEHEES P ROMAEHD

Our procedures in relation to impairment
assessment of goodwill included:

B EE ZBENERITEF B

o Evaluating the independent valuers’

competence, objectivity and qualifications;

o HEBUGERZBEREN BEBRUEREE:

° Involving our internal valuation specialists to
assess the discount rate applied underpinning
the discounted cash flow models by
performing re-calculations based on market
data and certain company specific parameters;

e EBRABEERR  BEMSBEELETAGR
E2E - ETENEE  UFIHRReERER
BIPTRRRLIR X

° Evaluating the reasonableness of other key
assumptions, such as growth rate and inputs
included in the financial forecast, by
comparing to historical performance and
industry data, and

o  HIBERBRITEEIR - UM TERITA
Hith F 2 RBOILIIEREURBABNEEN
P54

° Performing sensitivity analysis and evaluating
the adequacy of disclosures of impairment

assessment.
o ETRBEHTARFERET 2 BBEOTR
p o
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Key audit matter

REEtEE

Accounting for business combination
EBEOHETIEE
As disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group completed a business
combination of hospitals during the year. As at the
date of the business combination, the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities assumed amounted to
approximately RMB247,001,000 and the Group
recognised goodwill of approximately
RMB171,564,000. The Group engaged an independent
professionally qualified valuer to perform the purchase
price allocations on the fair values of the identifiable
assets and liabilities assumed in the business
combination.
MEEUBBRERMTUIAEER EXERFRTK
—RBREBAMN - RNEBEHBEH  WENHAH
MEERAENBEN AABENRAREK
247,001,000t EXEECEHEAFTEIOARK
171,564,0007T - EXEEF 7T HLEXSERNMGE
BERD - HEBE TP ATREO P HRI & E R PAAER
BENARBEETHBEESR -

This is a key audit matter due to the magnitude of
the balance and the significant judgements and
estimates involved in (i) the assessment of whether
the Group has obtained control over the hospitals
and whether the Group had the practical ability to
direct the hospitals’ relevant activities unilaterally;
(i) the identification of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed; and (iii) the determination of the fair
values of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed.

ST RS R BT FE - RE R SRER A AR AR LA KO8 B A
TREENEXRABMMGES : ()FE EXEEREEE
SHBRNZEGE Uk ESERSEEEHHEE
BEREBBEIBNERE N © ((VERAMBEEMARE
WEE: RiVEEMBAISMNEENAZNBENA
REBE-

The accounting policies and related disclosures of
the business combination are included in notes 2.4,
3 and 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

SITBEMEBR S I HERE SN G B mE M
2.4 - 3841 -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

R EE B R0 T

Our procedures in relation to the accounting for the
business combination included:

BPIEB AN ST REMATREF B

° Examining the terms of the relevant sale and
purchase agreements, service contracts and
other related documents to assess
management’s judgement that the Group
obtained control over the hospitals;

e ERMEEEENR  REA R MKHMIBR X
R URHEEREY SSBEESERIEHIE

FIT 1 & HI T

° Involving our internal valuation specialists to
evaluate the valuation methodologies adopted
and the assumptions used to determine the
fair values of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed;

e EABEERR  FHAEEMKRERI#LNEE
MAEAEABON AR BEMRMNNEETERFR
A&

o Evaluating the independence, objectivity and
competence of the external valuer engaged by
management; and

e FIEEREZEMIIBMEEMNE L TEMT
NMisEee S &

° Assessing the adequacy of disclosures in
connection with the business combination.

e HEMEBAMHFELNBEERTRED °
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the

information.

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
responsibility read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit

statements, our is to

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the
IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or h